5™ July, 2021
CIN: L55101TG1973PLC040558

To,

The Secretary,

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE)
Phiroze Jheejheebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001.

Scrip Code - 543308

ISIN: INE967H01017

Dear Sir,
Subject: Filing of Annual Financials Statements of FY 2020-21 as per your email dated 2" July, 2021

Pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 2015
(as amended), a company is required to submit audited financial results for the financial year, within
sixty days from the end of the financial year along with the audit report. However, our Company,
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited, got listed on the 28 June, 2021 and the Company had
approved Annual Financial Statements in their Board Meeting held on 25" May, 2021 and all the
compliances including prior intimation of Board Meeting and filing of financials with exchanges were
not applicable to the Company as it was not listed.

Based on the email received from your exchange dated 2™ July, 2021 directing our Company to file
Annual Financials, we have filed the financials in XBRL Format and the Annual financials of the
Company for FY 2020-21 in PDF format are being filed under General Announcements section
adhering to your instructions.

Thanking you,

Yours truly

For Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited.
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Company Secretary & Compliance Officer — -

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Minister Road, Secunderabad - 500 003, Telangana, India

Phone: +91 40 4488 5000/4488 5184 | Fax: +91-40-27840980 | kimshospitals.com
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SECUNDERABAD | KONDAPUR
NELLORE | RAJAHMUNDRY | SRIKAKULAM | ONGOLE | VIZAG | ANANTAPUR | KURNOOL




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP Lot For Mo Lope -

Chartered Accountants Survey No. 83/1, Raidiirgam
Hyderabad - 500 032, India
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Tel : +91 40 6141 6000

To the Members of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Krishna Institute of
Medical Sciences Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity tor the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, . .

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295
Read. Office : 22, Camac Street, Bleck '8’ 3rd Floor, Kolkata 700 016
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Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obfained all the information and explanations which to the best of oura.
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of these books; .

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;
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(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.25 to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements;

il.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

WaMu}fw |—1

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner ; /':/
. ¥ Lo
Membership Number: 102328 - ERRZ~

UDIN: 21102328AAAADC6483
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Re: Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (the Company")

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

a)

b)

c)

b)

c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

All property, plant and equipment assets have not been physically verified by the
management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of the immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company
are held in the name of the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.
There was no inventory lying with third parties.

The Company has granted loans to four subsidiaries covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such
loans are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

The Company has granted loans to four subsidiaries covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated for the loans granted and the
repayment/receipts are regular.

There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue
for more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors
including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given,
investments made and, guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the
company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the medical and healthcare
services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same.
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(vii)

(viii)

a)

b)

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to duty
of customs, sales-tax, service tax and duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the records of the Company, the dues of value added tax and luxury tax on
account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of | Nature of Amount Amount Period to | Forum where
the statute | the dues Demanded | paid under which the dispute is
(Rs.) protest the pending
(Rs.) amount
relates
(Financi
_al Year) -
Hon’ble High
Court of
Judicature at
The Luxury 16,140,468 7,993,480 2004-07 | Hyderabad for
Andhra Tax* the State of
Pradesh Andhra
Tax  Act, Pradesh -
*1987 52,022,873 | 29,361,961 2007-11 | Sales Tax
Penalty on Appellate
Luxury 14,101,865 | 2,115,280 2008-09 | Tribunal,
Tax* Hyderabad
Novembe | Appellate
AP VAT | Value r 2009 to | Deputy
Act, 2005 | Added Tax 1,758,116 | 1,098,823 February | Commissioner,
2013 Hyderabad
CGST and July 2017 | Assistant
CGST Act, | SGST .
. . 6,593,296 - to August | Commissioner,
2017 including
2019 Ongole
penalty

*Interest will be levied as applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a
financial institution, bank. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from
government or debenture holders.
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(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt
instruments) and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no
fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management the Company
has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
allotment of equity shares against share warrants, issued in earlier years. According to
the information and explanations given by the management, we report that the amount
raised, are idle/surplus funds amounting to Rs 950,238,283 which were not required for
immedtate utilization and which have been gainfully invested in liquid investments
payable on demand. The maximum amount of idle/surplus funds invested during the year
was Rs 950,238,283, of which Rs 950,238,283 was outstanding at the end of the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cagh transactions with directors or persons connected with
him as referred to in section 192 of C ompanies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

/’, o ‘\\5 }
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per Navneet Rai Kabra AFPOUI'TANT; %
Partner o A /
; \ ¥ ,‘i‘~“
Membership Number: 102328 <G

UDIN: 21102328 AAAADC6483
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021
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Annexure 2 to The Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31 March
2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

O[amu} (w"f-f'\

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 21102328AAAADC6483
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021
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Krishna Institute of Mcdical Sciences Limited

CIN: USS101TGI973PL.CO40558

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupecs. except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 21 (a) 577177 5.537.61
Capital work-in-progress 2.1 (a) 7603 2233
Intangible asscts 2.1 (b) 3136 26.89
Right-of-usc assets 2.26 20.77 27.63
Financial assets
(i) Investmenis 22 2,132.23 1,779.60
(ii) Loans 23 (a) 283.32 203.30
(iii) Other financial assets 24 (a) 1522 0.11
Non-current (ax assets (net) 29 4036 20753
Other non-current assets 2.5 93.96 77.07
Total non-current assets 8.465.02 7.882.07
Current assets
Inventories 2.6 164.73 217.07
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 27 730.04 991.51
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 2.8 (a) 34585 344.67
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 2.8 (b) 2,154 33 50.13
(iv) Loans 2.3 (b) 17.92 15.24
{v) Other financial assets 2.4 (b) 21273 46.39
Other current assets 2.10 46.65 27.36
Total current assets 3,672.25 1,692.37
Total assets _ 12.137.27 9.574.44
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 2.11 (a) 77593 744.90
Other equity 2.11 (b) 8.297.30 549640
Total equity 9,073.23 6,241.30
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2.12 67784 1,471.23
(i1} Lease liabilities 226 i8.89 25.62
(iii) Other financial liabilities 2.13 (a) 009 0.09
Provisions 2.14 142.47 122.02
Other non-current liabilities 2.18 (a) 2272 30.27
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 236 301.14 304.39
Total non-current liabilities 1,163.15 1,953.62
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2.15 500.00 20.81
(ii) Lease liabilities 226 6.73 852
(i) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 2,16 2.51 3.86
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 2.16 849.34 775.92
enterprises
{iv) Other financial liabilities 2.13 (b) 207.07 417.68
Provisions 2.17 76.49 54.19
Other current liabilities 2.18 (b) 195.34 98.54
Current tax liabilities (Net) 6341 -
Total current liabilities 1,900.89 1,379.52
Total equity and liabilitics 12.137.27 9.574.44
Significant accounting policies 1.3
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial staternents.
As per our report attached of even date
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

per Navneet Rai Kabira
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

AEvecutive Officer
JMN: 01681273

DIN: 00008985
VYT TR SIS
L T

" .
Vikas Maheshwari Uma Shankar Mantha L
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership no:A21035
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021 Date: 25 May 2021
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: USS101TG1973PLC040558
Standalone statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, excepl share data or unless othenwise stated)

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses

Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments

Decrease / (increase) in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical
instruments

Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Deprecialion and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax

Tax expense

- Current tax

- Deferred tax credit

- Adjustments of tax relating to earlier year
Total tax expense

Profit for the year (A)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans

- Income tax effect

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (B)

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B)
Earnings per share (face value of share Rs. 10 each)
- Basic

- Diluted

Significant accounting policies

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.19 9.326.89 7.899.70
2.20 96.15 70.90
- 9,423.04 7,970.60

1,959.62 1.825.90

221 52.34 (27.40)
2.22 1,470.36 1.369.70
2.23 147.83 205.69
2.1(a), 2.1(b) & 2.26 445.98 426.62
2.24 2,804.28 2,705.04
6,880.41 6.505,55

2,542.63 1,465.05

236 668.12 387.41
2.36 (1 64) (113.49)
2.36 (10.34) (19.93)
656.14 253.99

1,886.49 1,211.06
(6.40) (12.08)

1.61 3.04
@.79) 9.04)

1,881.70 1,202.02

229

25.20 16.26

24.77 16.13

1.3

The accompanying notes referred to above fonn an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LILP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

Namat ar

per Navneel Rai Kabra
Partner
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TGI973PL.C0O40558

Standalone statement of cash flows for the yeir ended 31 March 2021

(Al amounts are m million of Indian Rupees. except share data or unless otherwise stated)

L. Cash flows from opcrating activitics:

Profit before tax

Adjustments for operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation expenscs

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Expected credil loss for trade receivables

Trade receivables written off

Investment written of f

Guarantce commission income

Renlal income

Interest income on fixed deposits, security deposit and loan to related parties
Liabilities no longer required written back

Interest income on income lax refund

Finance cost

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Adjustments for:
Decrease /(increase) in trade receivables

Decrease /(increase) in inventories

(Increase) /decrease in loans, Other financials assets and other assets

Increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities, provisions and other liabilities
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid, net of refunds

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

11. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equiptnent and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Investment in subsidiaries

Loans given to subsidiaries

Receipt of loans given to subsidiaries

Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Invesiment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Lease income received

Interest received

Net cash vsed in investing activities (B)

111. Cash Mlows from financing activities

Repayment of long-terim borrowings

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Proceeds / (repayment) of short-tenin borrowings (net)

Payment of lease oblipations

Proceeds from issue of shares

Interest paid

Net cash Mlows generated from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

254203 1.405 05
445 08 420 62
171 4.06
1755 2763
- 0.64

010 .
(8.93) (4.00)
(1.27) (1.46)
(56.43) (33.08)
(0.89) (3.16)
(827 (2.06)
147.83 205.69
3,090.01 2,085.87
243.92 (19.49)
52.34 (27.40)
(258 81) 3130
21323 5.65
3,340.69 2,075.93
(427.20) (470,05
2.913.49 1.605.88
(726.65) (212.15)
320 2.64
(352.73) (913.67)
(250.00) (209.05)
238.70 229.74
28.82 146,45
(2,145.60) (169.22)
1.27 1.46
36.95 43.52
(3.166.04) (1,080.30)
(1,018.63) (286.80)
= 330.00
479.19 (64.58)
(14.27) (28.05)

950.23 <
(142.79) (194.07)
253.73 (243.50)
1.18 282,08
344,67 62.59
345.85 344.67

Note:

a) The standalone statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (Ind 7)-Statement of cash flows:

b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:

Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- On current accounts
- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)
Total

The accompanying notes referred to above fonn an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Finn Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 Murch 2020

11.54 2243
20931 242.24
125.00 80.00
345.85 M4.67

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
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)r. B Bhas Ran
Managing Director
DIN:00008985

Vikas Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer

DiN: 01681273

P

Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary

Membership no: A21035

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share dala or unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No of shares Amount
At 1 April 2019 74,489,552 744.90
Add: Shares issued during the year - = _
At 3§ March 2020 74,489,552 744.90
Add: Shares issued during the year 3,103,731 31.03
At 31 March 2021 77,593,283 775.93
I+) Other Equity

Particulars Other equity Total of other

Reserve and surplus Share equity
Securities premium | Adjustment reserve Retained earnings Warrants
account

Balaace as at 01 April 2019 7,525.80 57.64 (3,292.16) 3.10 4,294.38
Profit for the year - - 1.211.06 - 1.211.06
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (9.04) - (9.04)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 7.525.80 57.64 (2.090.14) 3.10 5,496.40
Profit for the year - - 1,886.49 - 1.886.49
Shares issued during the year 922.30 . - (3.10) 919.20
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - (4.79) - (4.79)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 8.448.10 57.64 (208.44) 8.297.30

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

1CAT Finn Regstration no.: 101049W/ E300004
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per Navaeet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021

i
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Chief Financial Officer
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Date: 25 May 2021
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.1  Company Overview

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (‘the Company’) was originally incorporated on 26 July 1973 under
the name “Jagjit Singh and Sons Private Limited” which was subsequently changed to “Krishna Institute of
Medical Sciences Private Limited” on 2 January 2004. The Company was converted into a public limited
company under the Companies Act, 1956 on 29 January 2004 and consequently, the name was changed to
“Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited”.

The company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at D. No. 1-8-31/1, Minister's Road,
Secunderabad, Telangana, India - 500003.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 25 May
2021.

1.2 Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements

a) Statement of Compliances:

The Standalone financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, have been
prepared in accordance with requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”), as prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and presentation requirements of Division
IT of Schedule III of the Act.

All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data, unless otherwise stated.

b) Basis of measurement:

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value - refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Defined benefit plan - plan assets measured at fair value

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data and per share
data, unless otherwise stated.

d) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Company’s standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: U5S5101TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have made in
the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the standalone financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note 2.36 — Recognition of deferred tax assets,
availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date. Refer Note 2.27 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial
assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of
such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 2.35 for further disclosures.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
pay to butrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company
‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
Judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based
on a Discounted cash flow model (“DCF model”). The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Classification of financial instruments as equity

The Company has entered into Shareholders agreement (‘SHA”) with private equity (“PE” or the “Investors”)
investors for purchase of equity shares. As per the terms of the SHA, the Company needs to provide an exit to
Investor either through an Initial Public Offering (“IPO™) based on best effort basis, till such time that [PO is
successful or Marketed sale process based on best effort basis, which are in the control of the Company.
Accordingly, the Company has classified and measured the aforesaid instruments as equity.




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.3 Significant accounting policies

A. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current classification.
Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

1. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating
cycle;

ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

lii. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

I. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

il. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

1. itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

B. Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

The Company's Chief Financial officer determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement and for other non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant exteral
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee and the
Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values
is included in Note 2.35 — financial instruments.




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

C. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services and
sale of pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The
performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical professional
services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for components of
variable consideration which constitutes discounts, estimated disallowances and any other rights and obligations
as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers and
deposited back to the respective statutory authorities. Revenue is recognised at the point in time for the outpatient
hospital services when the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With respect to the inpatients
hospital services who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date, revenue is recognised over
the period to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue from sale of phanmacy and food and beverages (other than hospital services), where the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

Revenue from admission fees, tuition fees and other fees for academic courses are recognised on the due date for
the receipt of fees and apportioned over the academic term on a time proportion basis. Fee waivers, discounts,
rebates provided to students are reduced from fee received.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected
value method to estimate the variable consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The most likely amount is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value
method is used for those with more than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the requirements on
constraining estimates in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price and recognised as revenue.

Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients who are
undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial
assets in section (m) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial instruments —
initial recognition and subsequent measurement.




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded using
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

D. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except to the
extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

*  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognilion
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset 1s realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
cither in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at
that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired
deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they
result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying
amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCY/ capital reserve depending
on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in
profit or loss.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

®  When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

¢ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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E. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost net of accumulated impairment, if any. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost, net of tax / duty credit availed, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it located. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date are
recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before
such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, Plant and Equipment
recognised as of April 01, 2016 (date of transition to Ind AS) measured as per the previous GAAP and used that
carrying value as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an
item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation/Amortisation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as
estimated by the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect
fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has estimated the
following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment which are in compliance with
the Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Buildings 60

Medical and surgical equipment 13-14

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Fumiture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8
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Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has estimated the
useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

* Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
e Leasehold land is in the nature of perpetual lease without any limited useful life and hence is not amortised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

F. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Intemally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

De recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its other intangibles recognised as of April
01, 2016 (date of transition to Ind AS) measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects
of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known
technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash
flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:
Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software 6
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G.  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

H. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of ri ght-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-
use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.
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iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

I Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis. The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item by item basis.

J. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow
projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate
can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.
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For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

K. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will
arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the standalone financial
statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
L.  Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction
in future payment or a cash refund.
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Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a
defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned and
returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The
calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined benefit liability (asset) as
a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses in the
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account on the
earlier of amendment or curtailment.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the

Statement of Profit and Loss:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

e Net interest expense or income

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative service is
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short term cash bonus, if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of the past service provided
by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave during the
financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards compensated absences at the end of the
financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The company
recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service.
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The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current
liabilities in the Balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

M. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial assets at
initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent measurement

On 1nitial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Financial assets at amortised cost

- + Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company’s financial assets at amortised
cost includes trade receivables, and loan to an associate and loan to a director included under other non-current
financial assets. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 2.35.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)
A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCIL. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss. The
Company’s debt instruments are not fair value through OCI assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Restated Ind AS Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

* Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

» Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

The Company considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime EC L).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the ori ginal
EIR.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial
guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial instruments are classified as a liability or equity components based on the terms of the contract and in
accordance with Ind AS 32 (Financial instruments: Presentation). Financial instrument issued by the Company
classified as equity is carried at its transaction value and shown within "equity". Financial instrument issued by
the Company classified as liability is initially recognised at fair value (issue price). Subsequent to initial
recognition, such Financial instrument is fair valued through the statement of profit or loss. On modification of
Financial instrument from liability to equity, the Financial instrument is recorded at the fair value of Financial
instrument classified as equity and the difference in fair value is recorded as a gain/ loss on modification in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

N.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

O. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the
period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of Company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
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(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

P. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Board of Directors is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

Q.  Corporate social responsibility
The Company charges its Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure to the statement of profit and loss.
R.  Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the standalone financial statements. Otherwise,
cvents after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

1.4 Standards notified but not yet effective

The new and amended standards that are notified, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these new and
amended standards if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments to Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors align the definition of ‘material’ across the standards and clarify certain
aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, ’Information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial
statements.

A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. The
amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
standalone financial statements.
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(Al amounts an: in million of Indian Rupees, excepl share dala or unless othawise slated)

2.1 (=) Property. plant and «sjuljrenini and eapltsl work in progress

Leaseheld land Medical snd Total of .
Partlealars Frecholdland (refrnotel  Bulldlngs surgical Plant and Office Electrial ¢ puters F'";""" "9 Vehicles  property. plamt CoPitel work-
below) equlpmem stures and equlpment 10 progress
Gross Carrying smount
Balance as at | April 2019 8342 [RER 34704 279365 124.46 3181 30488 56.29 211.90 2945 675802 -3?
Additions 982 5243 n2i2 3.4 1523 B36 23.98 1265 1292 32095 5150
Reclassification on adoption of Ind AS 116 £ (38.75) . - < (38.75) -
Disposals (1.05) 004) [R5} (198) .
Capitalisad during the year . i 40
Balance as at 31 March 2020 ([ 15182 8271 1997 11750 AT 4 313 BT 3455 A1 4T 103234 7w
Balance ss at 1 Aprll 2020 16324 15182 235997 127.9 47.04 3.0 8027 14.55 41 47 103224 2133
Additions 32665 24422 197 280 1604 3081 1508 - 679.75 9712
Disposals (43.96) = o) - (0.05) 3 (©.39) (44.41)
Capitalised during the year - = z 4602
Halaiice ws al 35 Mlureh 7021 AR Y 15140 Asigus FETTRED 12957 1907 11148 239,01 41409 FRTRED] Th1
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2019 16704 641 48 088 2300 129.02 3565 7808 1086 111801
Depreciation charge for the year 62.48 23679 1045 522 4304 1563 2699 484 405.44
Reclassification on adoption of Ind AS 116 (25 65) = . = - : (25 65)
i -3 - {245 - [URLLE] - X} [RREN]
Malanes asat 31 March 2020 - - 39.5 RE24¥7 4133 P 1] 17245 5114 107 (R 149402
Balance as at 1 April 2020 952 &5207 4133 2312 17205 5128 105.07 1508 1,494 62
Depreciation charge for the year 6269 259.28 1012 6.43 4339 16.76 2689 513 430.69
Disposals . (20 0ih = [LLAITY] RIS - 12930
Balance ax at 31 March 2021 - = 19211 L2 ¥ 5145 M pEET) #7099 131.% 1953 AR
Nel book value
A(31 March 2020 16324 15192 (AT W6 Eh {LE M HLls =y L19As EE3T6) 33
AL 31 March 2021 AH1.EY 151 147794 THAY 15.1% AR 4304 1n7.a7 ST 603
Notes:

| Lease bold land that is reraining in PPE schedule ks related 10 land Laken on perpetual lease

2. Buildings amounting lo gross block Rs. 75.U6 (31 March 2020: Rs 75 06) and net block Rs. 56.05

and renewable at the oplion of the Company.
3 Refernote 2 12 and 2.15 for details of assets pledged as secunty.

(31 March 2020: Rs. 56 88) ar¢ construcied on the land taken on kase from promoters for a period of 30 years without making any upfront payment
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tor the year ended 31 March 2021

2.1 (b Intanpible assets
Total of Intangible

Particulars Software assets
Ceross Carryving ainount

Bl asan 1 April 2009 41.40 41.40
Additins 9.38 938
Drsposals mliustmen (1.77) (1.7
Balanice as ot 31 March 2020 49.01 49.01
Balance as at 1 April 2020 49.01 49.01
Additions 12.90 12.90
Balance as at 31 March 2021 61.91 61.91 |
Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2019 13.46 13.46
Amortisation charge for the year 8.77 8.77
Disposals/adjustment (0.12) (0.12)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 22.12 22.12
Balance as at 1 April 2020 22,12 22.12
Amortisation charge for the year 8.43 8.43
Ralance as at 31 March 2021 30.55 30.58
Net book value

At 31 March 2020 26.89 26.89
At 31 March 2021 3136 3136
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Notes 1o the standalone (inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share dala or unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.2 Non curreat investments
{Unquotced, trade investment)
Investment in subsidiaries - valued at cost
a) Equity shares
1,172,281 (31 March 2020: 1,172,281) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in Arunodaya 63.34 63.34
Hospitals Private Limited
16,184,480 (31 March 2020: 16,184,480) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS 16184 161.84
Hospitals Private Limited
10,000 (31 March 2020: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS Swaslha 0.10 0.10
Private Limited
Nil (31 March 2020: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS Cuddles 010
Private Limited*
10,000 (31 March 2020: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS Hospital 0.10 0.10
(Bhubaneswar) Private Limited
21,185,907 (31 March 2020: 18,472,589) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS 1,310.31 957.58
Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
5,100 (31 March 2020: 5,100) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in Iconkrishi Institute 7363 73.63
of Medical Sciences Limited
8,000 (31 March 2020: 8,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in Saveera Institute of 1879 18.79
Medical Sciences Private Limited
3,300,000 (31 March 2020: 3,300,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in KIMS 94.22 94.22
Hospital Kurnool Private Limited
b) Preference shares
30,990,000 (31 March 2020: 30,990,000) 0.001% optionally convertible redeemable preference 309.90 309.90
shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held in Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
10,000,000 (31 March 2020: 10,000,000) 12% cumulative optionally convertible redeemable 100.00 100.00
preference shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up held in lconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private
Limited
Total 2,132.23 1,779.60

Aggregate amount of unquoted investiments 2,132.23 1,779.60
Aggregate provision for impairment in value of investments - .

*KIMS Cuddles Private Limited has filed necessary closure forms for strike off with Registrar of Companies (RoC) on February 9, 2021. Hence, Company
has written off the Investment.

2.3 Loans (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)

(a) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties
Security deposits 92.72 24.00
-To related parties (refer note 2.28)
Loans to related parties 190.60 179.30
Total 283.32 203.30

(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Security deposits 11.52 884

-To related parties (refer note 2.28)
Loans to related parties 6.40 6.40

17.92 15.24
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounis are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless olhenwise stated)

As at As at
— 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.4 Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
(a) Non-current
Deposits with remaining maturity more than 12 months* 12.68 0.10
Interest accrued on bank deposits 2.54 0.01
Total 15.22 0.11

* Includes Rs. 2.00 (31 March 2020: 0.10) deposits placed which are restriclive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are
maturing after 12 menths of the reporting date

(b) Current

-To parties other than related parties

Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) (refer note 2 37) 95.68 32.80
Interest accrued on bank deposits 21.07 3.06
[PO expenses recoverable (refer note (i) and (ii) below) 78.23

-To related parties (refer note 2.28)
Interest accrued on loans 17,75 10.53

Total 212.73 4639

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Corpany has incurred share issue expenses in connection with proposed public offer of equity shares of
which Rs. 78,23 is accounted for various services received for Initial Public Offering (IPO). As per the Offer Agreement entered between the Company
and the selling shareholders, the selling shareholders shall reimburse the share issue expenses in proportion to the respective shares offered for sale.
Accordingly, the Company will recover the expenses incurred in connection with the Issue on completion of IPO and therefore, the amount has been
carried forward and disclosed under the head "IPO expenses recoverable” (to the extent of not written off or adjusted).

(ii) Includes Auditor's remuneration in relation to propesed 1PO
Fee 19.00 -
19.00 -

2.5 Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances 25.12 35.24
Balance with government authorities 4057 40.57
Prepaid expenses 2827 1.26
Total 93.96 7707

2.6 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Medical consumables, drug and surgical insiruments 164.73 217.07

Total 164.73 217.07

2.7 Trade receivables (amortised cost)

(Unsecured)

Trade receivables-Consider good 730.04 99151

Trade receivables-Credit impaired 343.22 325.67

Total receivables 1,073.26 1,317.18

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Less: Trade receivable - credit impaired (343.22) (325.67)
Net trade receivables 730.04 991.51

* Includes amount receivables from related party amounting to Rs. 15.24 (31 March 2020: Rs, 6. 12). (Refer note 2.28).

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any trade or
other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.8 Cash and bank balances

a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- In current accounts
- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)

b) Bank balances other than (a) above
Deposils with remaining maturity less than 12 months*

Total

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

11.54 22.43
209.31 24224
125.00 80.00
345.85 344.67

2,154.33 50.13
2,154.33 50.13
2,500.18 394.80

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of belween one day and three months,

depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eam interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

* Includes Rs. 1.30 (31 March 2020: 29.05) deposits placed which are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are maturing with in 12

months of the reporting date.

¢) For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent comprise the following:

Particulars 1 April 2020 Cash flows Others 31 March 2021

Current borrowings 20.81 479,19 - 500.00
Current and Non-current lease liabilities 34.15 (14.27) 5.75 25.62
Now- current borrowings (including curment imaluritics) 1,806.34 (11863} - 787.71
Total linbilities from financing activities 1.461.30 (353.71) 5.75 1,313.33
Purticulars 1 April 2019 Cash flows Others 31 March 2020

Current horrowings 85.39 (64.58) . 20.81
{‘urrent and Non-current lease liabilities 24.38 (28.05) 37.82 34.15
Non: current borrow ings (including current maturities) 1,762.09 43.20 1.05 1,806, 34
Total linbilities from financing activities 1LRTL.86 (49.43) 3887 1.861.30

Others in non-current borrowings includes effect of amortization cost, Others in lease liabilities is towards addition of Jease liability and interest accrued thereon on

adoption of Ind AS 116.
2.9 Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance tax (net of provision for taxation)

2.10 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good}

Advance to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Staff advances
Other advances

Total

40.36 207.53
40.36 207.53
22.00 10.12
17.03 4.50
7.62 7.74

- 5.00
46.65 27.36
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(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.11 (a) Equity share capital

Authorised
Equity shares

As at
31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

95,000,000 (31 March 2020: 95,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 950.00 950 00
950.00 950.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
77,593,283 (31 March 2020: 74,489,552) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 775.93 744.90
775.93 744.90
(i) Reconciliation of number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Number of shares Amount__ Number of shares Amount
At the commencement of the year 74,489,552 744.90 74,489,552 744.90
Add: Shares issued during the year 3,103,731 3103 -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 77,593,283 775.93 74,489,552 744.90
775.93

(i) Rights, prelerences and restrictions attached to equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- each- Each equity share holder is entitled to one vote per equity share Leld. In the event
of liquidation of the company, the lolders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts
The distribution will be in propertion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement along with General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte
Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor™) and other existing shareholders through which new investor have purchased few shares from the
existing shareholders and entire shares from the old investor. As per the tenns of the SHA, the Company needs to provide an exit to new investor either through an
Initial Public Offering (“1PO™) based on best effort basis, till such time that 1PO is successful or Marketed sale process based on best effort basis, which are in the
control of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has classified and imeasured the aforesaid instruments as equity

(i) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao 21,407,895 27.59% 18,304,164 24.57%
General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd 31,739,906 4091% 31,739,906 42.61%
Bollineni Ramanaiah Memorial Hospitals Private Limited 5,228,628 6.74% 5,228,628 7.02%
B. Seenaiah 4,582,517 591% 4,582,517 6.15%

(iv) Aparegate

of honus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years i

lintely preceding the reporting date

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

31-Mar-16

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up allotted as
bonus shares by capitalisation of securities premium

61,603,374

(v) The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet dates.

RTERED YA\
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Allamounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.11 (b) Other equity As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(i) Securities premium (refer below note 1)
Balance as per last financial statements 7,525.80 7,525.80
Add: Shares issued during the year 922.30 -
Closing balance 8,448.10 7,525.80
(ii) Adjustment reserve (refer below note 2)
Balance as per lasl financial statements 57.64 57.64
Movement during the year - =
Closing batance 57.64 57.64
(iii) Share warrants (refer below note 3)
Balance as per last financial statements 310 310
Less: Shares issued during the year (3.10)
Closing balance 3.10
(iv) Retained earnings (refer below note 4)
Balance as per last financial statements (2,090.14) (3,292.16}
Add: Profit for the year 1,881.70 1,202.02
Closing balance (208.44) (2,000.14)
8,297.30 5,496.40
Note:

1. Securities premium

Securities premiwm is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Adjustment reserve

During the year ended 31 March 2014, pursuant to the Scheme of Amrangement approved by Honourable High Court of Andhra Pradesh, the Company has allotted
306,069 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each to the Share holders of the Bollineni Heart Centre Limited (“transferor Company”) against 4,455,000 equity shares of Rs 10
each outstanding in the transferor Company in the ratio of 9 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every 131 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the Transferor Company. The
difference of Rs. 41.49 on account of the above share swap has been added to the Adjustment Reserve of the Company as per the Scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2014, pursuant te the Scheme of Amangeinent approved by the High Court, the Company allotted 969,231 equity shares of Rs. 10
each to the shareholders of the Bollineni Ramanaiah Memorial Hospitals Private Limited (“Demerged Company™) against 2,100,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each
outstanding in the Demerged Company in the ratio of 6 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every 13 equity shares of Rs 10 each of the Demerged Company. The
difference between the consideration payable and the value of net assets taken over as per the Scheme amounting to Rs. 16.15 has been added to the Adjustment
Reserve of the Company as per the Scheme.

3. Issue of share warrants

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement (SSPA) along with General Atlantic Singapore
KH Pte Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor™) and other existing shareholders. In accordance with the aforesaid SSPA, the Company has
issued 3,103,731 number of share warrants to Dr B Bhaskara Rao. Each of these share warrants are convertible into | equity share of Rs. 10 each at a future date prior
to filing of Draft Red Hearing Prospectus with Securities Exchange Board of India as per the terms of SSPA. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
received Rs. | each against these share warrants issued agpregating to Rs. 3.10. The share warrants were converted to 3,103,731 equity shares on 16 February 2021 at
the rate of Rs 307.16 (including securities premium of Rs 297.16) (Refer note 2.11(a) & 2.1 1(b)(iii).

4. Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/losses (net of appropriations) of the company eamed till date, including items of other compreliensive income.
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(Allamounts are in million of Indian Rupees, excepl share data or unless othenvise slated)

2.12

Notes:

viil

Long-term borrowings (at amortised cost)

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Non-current Current* Non-current Current*
Secured
Term loans from banks
- HDFC Bank equipment loan - 1 (refer notc i) 6321 15.85
- HDFC Bank equipment loan - 2 (refer nole ii) - 10591 9.37
- Federal bank (erm loan (refer note iii) 14315 65.83 625 16 167.74
Total loans from banks (A) 143.15 65.83 794.28 192.96
Term loans from other parties
- NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited (refer note iv) 534.69 44 04 67695 142.15
Total loans from other partics (B) d 534.69 44.04 676.95 142.15
Total (A) + (B) 677.84 109.87 1,471.23 335.11

*Refer current maturities of long tenm borrowings under note 2 13 (b)

- Tenn loan - 1 from HDFC bank was taken by the Company towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the medical
equipment out of sanctioned facility, carrying an interest rate ranging from 9.5% pa. fixed (31 March 2070° 9 5% pa fixed)

- This loan is repayable in 84 uncqual monthly instalinents starting from July 2017 to June 2024

- The loan was pre closed during the year ended 31 March 2021,

- Tern loan - 2 from HDFC bank was taken by the Company towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the medical
equipment out of sanctioned facility, carrying an interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 0.65% (31 March 2020: 1Y MCLR + 0.65%). Also secured by personal guarantee of
Dr B Bhaskara rao

- This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instaliments starting from January 2019 to December 2024

- The loan was pre closed during the year ended 31 March 2021.

- Federal Bank term loan was taken by the Company and consists of 1 loan (31 March 2020: 3 loans). The first two loans were secured by exclusive charge on
existing hospilal at Rajalunundry and personal puarantee of Dr, B. Bhaskara Rao. The third loan is secured by Pari Passu first charge on Property, Plant and
Equipment of the Company (excluding Rajahmundry hospital) and personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao and Dr. B. Abhinay. Also the loans are secured by
pledge of minimuin 29% shareholding of the KIMS Hospital Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

- The loans are repayable in 60 to 66 equal monthly instalments starting from May 2019 to April 2025 and carries an interest rate ranging from 8.85% to 9.50% p.a.
(31 March 2020: 9.50% to 9.80% p.a.).
- 2 loans were prepaid during the year ended 31 March 2021.

- Tenm loan from NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited (formerly known as IDFC Infrastructure Finance Limited) is taken by the Company and is secured by a first
pari-passu mortgage and charge of immovable properties of the Secunderabad lospital and Nellore hospital building of the Company

- Also secured by a first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Secunderabad hospital and Nellore Hospital movable properties including movable plant and
machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of whatsoever nature excluding the equipment
which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans and a second pari-passu mortgage and charge of immovable properties of the Ongole hospital.

- Also includes a second pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Ongole hospital movable properties including movable plant and machinery, machinery
spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of whatsoever nature excluding the equipment which are purchased by
Company out of medical equipment loans; a second charge on the entire cash flows, receivables, book debts and revenues of the Company, of whatsoever nature and
wherever arising; subject to the prior charge of the working capital lenders,

- Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is repayable in 72 cqual monthly instalments and carries an interest rate of 9.10% p.a. (31
March 2020: 9.10% p.a)

Aggregate amount of secured loans (including current imaturities of long term borrowings) guaranteed by few Directors is Rs.787.71 (31 March 2020: Rs. 1,727.29)
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees. except share data or unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

2.13 Other financial liabilitics (at amortised cost)

(a) Non-current
Securily deposits 0.09 0.09

Total 0.09 0.09

(b} Current

Current maturity of long tenn borrowings (refer note 2.12) 109.87 335.11
Capital creditors 23.04 13.45
Employee related liabilities* 67.53 61.61
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 028 099
Security and caution deposit 6.35 6.52
Total 207.07 417.68

*Includes payables to related parties, For details refer note 2.28

2.14 Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2.27) 142.47 122.02

Total 14247 122.2

2.15 Short-term borrowings (at amortised cost)

Secured
Working capiltal loans from banks (refer note i) - 20.81

Unsecured
Working capital loans from banks (refer note i) 500.00 =
Total 500.00 20.81

Notes
i Federal bank - Loan taken by the Company is secured by primary exclusive charge on cument assets of Rajahmundry hospital, both current and future and
collateral security by exclusive charge on existing hospital at Rajahmundry. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao
- Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.35% p.a. (31 March 2020: 9.35%).
- Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2021 is Rs. Nil (31 March 2020: 20.81).

ii. Loan from Standard Chartered Bank taken by the company is secured by personal guarantee given by Dr. B Bhaskar Rao. The loan carries an interest rate of
4.90% per annum (31 March 2020: Nil). Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2021 is Rs.500.00 (31 March 2020: Rs. Nil)

iii Amount of secured loans guaranteed by directors is Rs. 500.00 (31 March 2020: Rs. 20.81).

2.16 Trade payables (at amortised cost)

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 2.31) 251 3.86
- total outslanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 84934 775.92
Total 851.85 779.79

The above includes payable to related party. For details refer note 2.28
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms.

2.17 Short term provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 2.27) 12.44 2.02
Compensated absences 64.05 52.17
Total 76.49 54.19

2.18 Other liabilities
(a) Non-current

Financial guarantee liability 22.72 30.27
Total 22.72 30.27
(b) Current
Statutory dues payable 50.72 43.73
Contract liabilities (refer note 2.37) 123.69 18.90
Financial guarantee liability 3.86 5.23
Other liabilities 17.07 30.68
Total 195.34 98.54
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2.19

A

220

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract with customers
Income from medical and healthcare services (Refer note 2.37)

Income froin hospital services
Income from pharmacy

Total

Other operating income

Income from academic courses
Income from sale of food and beverages
Other hospital income

Total
Total revenue from operations (A+B)
Other income

Interest income on:

- fixed deposits

- income tax refunds

- security deposit

- loans to related parties
Rental income (Refer Note:2.26)
Liabilities no longer required written back
Guarantee commission income
Miscellaneous income

Total

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

6,175.20 5,049.75
2,977.66 2,666.59
9,152.86 771634
62.10 61.57
103.74 1298
8.19 8.81
174.03 183.36
9,326.89 7,899.70
28.03 4m2
827 2.06
143 -
26.97 28.36
127 146
0.89 3.6
8.93 4.06
2036 27.08
96.15 70.90

Q&l
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2.21 Decrease / (increase) in inventorics of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments

Opening stock
Less: Closing stock

Total

2.22 Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note no 2 27)
Staff welfare expenses

Total

2.23  Finance cost

Interest from banks

- tenn loans

- other loans
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note no 2.26)
Others

Total

2.24  Other expenses

Consultancy charges
House keeping expenses
Power and fuel
Catering and patient welfare expenses
Rent (refer note 2.26)
Tests and investigations
Academic courses expenses
Repairs and maintenance:

- Medical equipment

- Hospital building and others
Printing and stationery
Audit fee (refer note A below)
Legal and professional charges
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Advertisement and publicity
Communication expenses
Trade receivable written off
Expected credit loss for trade receivables
Insurance
Subscriptions and membership fees
Investment written off (refer note no 2.2)
Donations (refer note B below)
Contributions towards Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 2.33)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Bank charges
Directors sitting fee
Commission to Directors
Muiscellaneous expenses

Total

Note A: Payment to auditors {excluding applicable taxes)

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

217.07 189,67
164.73 217.07
5234 (27.40)
1,364.54 1,269.97
90.80 85.77
15.02 13.96
1,470.36 1,369.70
117.31 177.27
0.18 16.50
5.75 10.87
24.59 1.05
147.83 205.69
1,610.94 1,548.74
240.32 235.55
144.82 146.28
102.30 104.88
41.52 24.78
13.29 10.48
0.70 1.03
179.90 141.96
139.07 97.91
2284 28.25
348 5.18
37.86 53.07
35.15 56.75
15.88 22.20
47.44 55.54
9.57 9.78
z 0.64
17.55 27,63
6.28 5.93
4.67 526
0.10 ;
30.79 51.17
2.44 15.14
1171 4.06
3547 31.89
0.64 123
1.93 .
27.92 19.70
2.804.28 2.705.04

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended|
31 March 2020

Statutory audit fee
Fee paid to erstwhile auditor in the capacity of Statutory auditor*
Out of pocket expenses

3.00

0.18

3.00
2.00
0.18

* Paid to erstwhile statutory auditors

Note B: Donations
Donations includes subscription to electoral bonds of Rs. Nil (31 March 2020: Rs, 50).
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2.25 Contingent liabilities and commitments

() Contingent labiliries
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 Murch 2020
il tausmantes issued by the Company on behalf of related entities 1,280.00 1,680.00
(Value of loan availed oulstanding as at year end against aforesaid guarantee is Rs. 1,076 85 (31
March 2020: Rs. 1,348 95))
i) Luxury tax matters in dispule 82.27 8227
i) Good and Service tax matters in dispute 6.59 -
iv) VAT malters in dispute 1.76 1.76
v)  Medical claims (gross, excluding interest/costs) 119.08 9498
vi)  Other claims 23.76 2376

vii) The Company has obtained a stay from High Count for the state of Andhra Pradesh, dated 11 November 2014, directing the local authorities not ti
proceed with the acquisition of part of the building in Nellore for the purpose of road widening. No provision thereof has been made in the Stanidalone
financials statements.

viil) An individual has filed a consumer case at National Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission against the Company along with 3 other livspitals
demanding a total compensation of Rs. 235.01 (31 March 2020: Rs. 235.01) along with a further interest @ 8% p.a towards medical negligence
Based on the legal opinion obtained by the company and the internal evaluation by the management, the Company believes that it has strong case in|
this regard and there shall not be any outflow of resources. No provision thereof has been made in the Standalone financial statement.

ix) On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining which)
components of their employee's compensation are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution obligations, fir
Provident Fund contributions under Indian law. There are interpretative issues relating to the retrospective applicability of the judgement. However,
from the date of order, the Company has complied with the aforesaid Sup court's judg The Company will evaluate the same and update its
position for earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the subject

Notes:
i. Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash flow, if any, in respect of the
above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forumns/authorities.

ii. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable in its standalone financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceeding to have a
materially adverse effect on its financial position.

(hy C i t
Particul As at As at
articufars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1) Capital commitment
i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net 129.06 1118

of advances)

IT) Other commitments
1) During the earlier years, the Company had acquired 80% shareholding in Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (‘Saveera'). As per the
shareholder's agreement, the Company agreed to transfer 3.5% of the equity shares of Saveera to the minority shareholders of Saveera subject to
fulfilment of certain conditions.
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2.26

Lease

Operating and Finance leascs in the capacity of lessee

The Company has lease contracts for buildings and medical equipment used in ils operations. Leases of building. plant and machinery generalty
have lease terms between 3 and 10 years The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title (o the leased assets

Leases of buildings and machinery with lease tenms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Company applies

the *short-term lease * and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions fo1 these leases

The Company has several lease contracts that include exiension and lermination options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company's business needs. Management exeicises significant

Jjudgement in determining whether these extension and ternnination options are reasonably certain Lo be exercised.

Set out below are the carving mmounts of muhit-ofuse assels recopmsed and the movements during the year:
Particulars Building Medical equipment Total
As at 31 March 2019 .
Reclassification on adoption of [nd AS 116 - 13.10 13.10
Addition on adoption of [nd AS 116 (net) 26.95 - 26.95
Ainortization expense 3.79 862 1241
As at 31 March 2020 23.15 4.48 27.63
Amortization expense 4.66 2.20 6.86
As at 31 March 2021 18.49 2.28 20.77
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabililies and the movements during the year:
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 34.15 -
Reclassification on adoption of Ind AS 116 2438
Additions 2695
Accretion of interest 5.75 10.87
Payments (14.27) (28.05)
As at 31 March 25.62 34.15
Current 6.73 8.52
Non-current 18.89 25.62
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9.75% (31 March 2021: 9.75%), with maturity between 2022-2029.
The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss:
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amortization expense of right-of-use assets 6.86 12.41
Interest expense on lease liabilities 5.75 10.87
Expense relating to short-tenm leases and low-value assets (included in other expenses) 41,52 24,78
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 54.13 48.06
The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 55.79 in 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Rs. 52.83).
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of lease liabilities:
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Within less than one year 11.24 14.27
Between one and five years 16.62 24.50
After more than five years 11.14 14.50
Total 39.00 53.27
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2,27 Employee benefits
(i)

Defined benefit plan

The Company operate post-crploynient defined benelit plan that provides for gratuity The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of (he
payment of Gratuity Actl. 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of
continuous services, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed services at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is adiministered
by trust formed for this purpose and is managed by Lifc Insurance Corporation of India The Company's obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which is a
defined benefit plan is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts

recognised in the Company’s standalone financial statements as at the balance sheet date:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

Asar
31 March 2020

Defined benefit obligations

Fair value of plan asscts

Net defined benefit obligations
Total employee benefit liability
Non-current

Current

171.32
16.42
154.90
154.90
14247
12.44

148,08
2405
124.03
124.03
122.02
2.02

B Reconciliation of net defincd benefit obligation

The following table shows a reconcilialion from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit obligation, plan assets and its

components

i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

i As at As af]
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Diefined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year 148.08 111.40
Benelits paid (6.13) (0.50)
C'urrent service cost 2193 1771
Interest cost 7.90 7.63
Actunrial losses/(gains) recognised in other comprehensive income
= Changes in demographic assumptions = (0.41)
- Changes in financial assumptions 0.49 12.86
- experience adjustments (0.95) (0:42)
Defined benefit abligation at the end of the yeur 171.32 148.08
i) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

3 Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Plan assels at beginning of the year 2405 19.77
Contributions paid into the plan 457 4.07
[nterest income 0.79 0.95
Benefits paid (6.86) (0.500)
Retturmn on plan assets (60.13) (0.2:4)
I'lan assets at end of the year 16.42 24.05

C i) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Current service cost
Interest on net defined benefit obligation
Net gratuity cost, included in 'employee benefits expense’

2193
7.1
29.04

1771
6.68
24.39

C i) Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income (OC1)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Actuarial lnss on net defined benefit abligation 16.40) (12,08 ||[

D Plan assets

Plan assets comprises of the following:

Partical Asat As at
Ty 31 March 202) 31 March 2020

Fund manoged by Tnsurer 1642 24.05 |
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2.27 Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

E Defined benefit obligation
i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at (he reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

[Prine ipal actuarial assumptions Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate 5.80% 585%

Salnry escalation rate 8.00% 8§00

Matrity profile of defined benefit ohlipation

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Ist following year 28.88 26.07
Year2to§ 85.88 7224
Year61t09 5433 47.76
Year 10 and above 81.64 73.00

ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assurmptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2021 For the year ended 31 March 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) (9.35) 10,43 (8.06) §.96

Salary escalation rate (1% twovenicnt) 9.62 (%.92) 8.36 (1.73)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumption shown

Defined contribution plan

Particulars For the year ended  For the year l.‘l'lﬂl!;‘

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Amount recogiused in the statement of profit and lass towards
i} Provident fund 46.03 43,01

i) Employce state insurance 15.73 18.36

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent
in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company is assessing the impact of the Code and will record any related impact in
the period of the Code becomes effective,



lustitute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: USSI01TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the standalone financind statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts ate in million of Indian Rupees, excepl shaie data o1 unless otherwise stated)

2.28  Related party disclosures

(4] Nature of relutivuship and name of related pariics
Nature ol relationship Name of related partivs
Subsidiaries Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited
KIMS Hospitals Piivate Limited
KIMS Swastha Private Limited
KIMS Cuddles Private Limiled
KIMS Hospilal Enterprises Private Limited
KIMS Hospital {Bhubaneswar) Privale Limiled
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Saveera Institule of Medical Sciences Privale Limited
| KIMS Hospilals Kumool Private Limited (w.e.f 01 April 2019)
Key Management personnel [ KMI'} Dr. B Bhaskara Fao - Munaginge Dhrector
Dr. B Abhinay - Chiel Executive Officer (CEO) {w e.I. 03 July 2019}
Mr. Uma Shanker Mantha - Company Secretary
Mr. Vikas Maheshwari - Chief Financial Officer
. Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha -Whide-time [Hyector
Directors Mi G Rajeswara Rao  «
Mus Jyothi Prasad (resigned on 8 January 2021)
Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik
Mr. Shanlanu Raslogi
Mr. Saumen Chakraborty (w.e.f 8 January 202}
Mr. Pankaj Vaish (w.e.f 8 January 2021)
Mr. Venkata Ramudu Jasthi (w.e.f 8 January 2021)
Mr. Kaza Raina Kishore (w.e.f 8 January 2021)

Relative of KMP I, Raavi Swetha- Daughter in law of Mataging Divectid
Enterprises under control or joint control of Sn Viswa Medicare Limited
KMP and close family member of KMP KIMS Foundalion and Research Centre
BSCPL Infrastructure Limited
Enterprise having significant influence over the company General Atlantic Singapore KH Pre. Lid
(1] Pransactions with related parties
Particalurs For the year ended For the year ended
| — 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
i Loans and advances given
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited - 2.00
KIMS Swastha Private Limiled 0.05
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 40.00 42,50
Saveera Inslitute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 105.00 77.00
KIMS Hospilals Kumnool Private Limited 105.00 87.50
i Repayment of loans and advances
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre . 10.01
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited - 135.74
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Privale Limited 26.80 .
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 135.00 54.00
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited 76 90 40.00
i, Interest income earned on loans given
KIMS Hospilals Private Limited - 8.39
KIMS Swastha Private Limited 0.51 0.5t
Iconkrishi Inslilute of Medical Sciences Private Limiled 10.34 5.56
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 7.24 9.38
KIMS Hospilals Kumool Private Limited 8.88 4.52
Iv. Conversion of Share warrants in to equity shares
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao (refer note 2.1 [{b)(iii)) 953.33 -
(Amount receivied during the year Rs. 950.23)
v, Payment for purchase of land
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao - 425
BSCPL Infrastructure Limited 292.50 -
vi. Professional fee to KMP
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao 18.00 18.00
il Professional fee to relative of KMP
Dr. Raavi Swetha 203 2.6

viil Rent to KMP

Dr. B Bhaskara Rao 0.10 0.10
i Managerial remuneration *

Dr. B Bhaskara Rao 22.00 24.00

Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha 3.60 3.60

Mr B Abhinay 9.00 7.5

Vikas Maheshwari 8.73 737

Uma Shankar Mantha 233 1.98
N Directors sitting fee

Mr G Rajeswara Rao 0.32 0.64

Mrs Jyothi Prasad 0.32 0.58
i, Commission to Directors

Mr G Rajeswara Rao 0.20

Mr. Saumen Chakraborty 088

Mr. Pankaj Vaish 045

Mr. Kaza Ratna Kishore 020

Mr. Venkata Ramudy fasthi .20
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2,28 Related party disclosures (continued)

Fransactinns with related partics (cont

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

xil.

xiii.

xv

XVi.

xvil.

Xix.

XX,

xviik

Expenditure towards CSR
KIMS Foundation and Reseaich Centre

Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments
Arunodaya Hospitals private Limited

KIMS Hospilal Enlerprises Privale Limited

Iconkrishi Institule of Medical Sciences Privale Limited

Saveera Inslitule of Medical Sciences Private Limited

KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited

Income from pharmacy

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Arunodaya Hospitals private Limited

Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
KIMS Hospitals Kunool Privale Linited

Investment in subsidiaries

Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (equity shares)
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (preference shares)
Iconkrishi Institule of Medical Sciences Private Limiled (equily shares)
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited

KIMS Hospital Private Limited

Write off of investment
KIMS Cuddles Private Limited

Revenue from Test and Investigations

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Saveera Institule of Medical Sciences Private Limiled
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited

Guarantee given on behalf of
KIMS Hospilals Kumool Private Limited
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

Guarantee closed
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Commission income on guarantees given to

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

Iconkrishi Institule of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
KIMS Hospitals Kurnoo! Private Limited

21.29

0.67
1.61
0.93
0.76
0.83

8.49
1.46
5.60
798
6.57

352.73

0.10

8.13

0.75

400.00

5.07
0.52
161
1.73

490
017
0.65
0.56
039

075
19.90
025
706.52
9422
161.74

11.25
0.66
1.30
1.74

530.00
30.00
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2.28 Related party disclosures (continued)

(c) The balances reccivables from and payable to related parties
Particolars As at Asul
31 March 2021 31 March 20020
i Trade receivables
Sii Viswa Medicare Limited 1.90 203
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Piivate Limited 2.8l 1.32
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Privale Limited 9.40 116
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited 091 1.52
Aiunodaya Hospitals private Limiled 023 -
i Loans
KIMS Swastha Private Limited 640 6.40
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Privale Limiled 85.00 71.80
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limiled 30.00 60.00
KIMS Hospilals Kurnool Private Limited 75.60 47.50
iv. Interest accrued on loans
KIMS Swastha Private Limiled 197 1.46
Iconkrishi Instilute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 7.51 5.00
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 6.68 =
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Privale Limited 1.59 4.07
vi Trade payables
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao 0.10 0.10
Dr. Raavi Sweata 0.18 0.16
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited - 0.26
Saveera Inslilute of Medical Sciences Private Linited - 0.03
KIMS Hospitals Kumnool Private Limited - 0.30
vil. Employee benefits payable
Mr. B Abhinay 0.32
Mr. Vikas Maheshwari * 0.31
Mr. Uma Shankar Mantha 0.12
Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha 0.16
viii. Commission payable to Directors
Mr G Rajeswara Rao 0.i6
Mr. Saumen Chakraborty 0.69
Mr. Pankaj Vaish 0.35
Mr. Kaza Ratna Kishore 0.16
Mr. Venkata Ramudu Jasthi 0.16
ix, Guarantee given on behalf of
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited - 400.00
Iconknishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 170.00 170.00
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 580.00 580.00
KIMS Hospitals Kumool Private Limited 530.00 530.00
X Financial guarantee liability
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited - 5.07
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 2.41 292
Saveera Inslilule of Medical Sciences Private Limited 14.85 16 46
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Privale Limited 9.32 11.06
(d) For certain loans availed by the Company, few Directors of the Company have given personal guarantee amounting to Rs. 1,287.71 (31 March

2020: Rs. 1,748.10)

* The managerial personnel are covered by the Company's gratuily policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees of the
Company. The proportionate amount of gratuily and leave encashment pertaining (o the managerial personnel has not been included in the aforementioned
disclosures as Lhese are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

Terms and conditions:

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to Lhose Lhat prevail in arm’s length tr i O ding bal at the year end
are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or
payables. For the above year ended, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This
assessmenl is undertaken on a forward-looking basis at each reporting period end through examining the historical information and financial position of
the related party that is adjusted to reflect current conditions of market in which the related party operates as well as infornnation about forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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2.29

Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Earnings

Profit for the year attributable to equity shaieholders 1,886.49 1,211.06

Shares

Number shares at (he beginning of the year 74,489,552 74,489,552

Add: Equity shares issued during the year 3,103,731

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 77,593,283 74,489,552

Weighted average number of equity sharcs outstanding during the year - Basic 74,872,204 74,489,552

Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of issue of share warrant that have dilutive effect 1,276,322 594,936

on EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Diluted 76,148,525 75,084,488

Eamings per equity share of par valuc Rs. 10 - Basic (Rs.) 2520 16.26

Eamnings per equity share of par value Rs. 10 - Diluted (Rs.) 24.77 16.13

230 Segment information

The Managing Director of the Company takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the report/ infonnation
provided by functional heads and are thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Based on the Company's business model, medical and healthcare services have been considered as a single business segment for the purpose of making
decision on allocation of resources and assessing its performance. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 108 “‘Operating sepment’ and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the
Standalone Financials Statements. Presently, the Company's operations are predominantly confined in India. There are no individual customer contributing
more than 10% of Company's total revenue. All non-current asscts other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets of
the Company are located in India

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2021 has been made in the standalone
financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that
may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devetopment Act, 2006 ("The MSMED Act)) is not
expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

Particulars Asat Asut
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020

The amounts retaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of the year

- Principal 251 3.86

- Interest . -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium)
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding Lhe interest specified under the
MSMED Act;

T amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act
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2.32 Investments, loans, guarantees and security:

233

(a) The Company has made investment in the following Companies:

Entity As at Allotied / . Sold/Written of . As at

01 April 2020 | Purchasedduring | the year Adjustment 31 March 2021

the vear -

Investment in subsidiarics
KIMS Hospital Private Limited 161.84 = - 161.84
KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 0.10 - 0.10 -
KIMS Swastha Private Limited 0.10 = 010
Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited 63.34 - 6334
KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Private Limited 957.58 35273 131031
KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 173.63 17363
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 328.69 328.09
KIMS Hospitals Kumool Private Limited 9422 94.22
Entity As at Allotted / . Sold during the . As at

01 April 2019 | Purchased during year Adjustment 31 March 2020

the vear
Investment in subsidiaries
KIMS Hospital Private Limited 0.10 161.74 161 84
KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 0.10 - - 0.10
KIMS Swastha Private Limited 0.10 - - 010
Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited 63.34 - 63.34
KIMS Hospitals Entemprises Private Limited 251.06 710.34 (3.82) 957 58
KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 0.10 - - 0.10
Iconkrishi [nstitute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 173.38 = 0.25 173.63
Saveera Institute of Mcdical Sciences Private Limited 308.03 20.05 = 328.69
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited - 9422 - 94.22
(b) The Company has given unsccured loans to its following subsidiaries:
Entity Purpose of loans As at Given during the | Repaid during the As at
01 April 2020 year vear 31 March 2021
KIMS Swastha Private Limited Financial assistance 6.40 - - 6.40
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Financial assistance 71.80 40.00 (26.80) 85.00
Saveera Instilute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Financial assistance 60.00 105.00 (135.00) 30.00
KIMS Hospitals Kumnool Private Limited Financial assistance 47.50 105.00 (76.90) 75.60
Entity Purpose of loans As at Given during the | Repaid during the As at
01 April 2019 vear year 31 March 2020
KIMS Hospital Private Limited Financial assistance 133.74 2.00 (135.74) -
KIMS Swastha Prvate Limited Financial assistance 634 0.05 - 6.40
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Financial assistance 29.30 42.50 71.80
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Financial assistance 3700 77.00 (54.00) 60.00
KIMS Hospitals Kumool Private Lunited Financial assistance - 87.50 (40.00) 47.50
(c) Details of guarantee provided
The Company has provided guarantees to the following subsidiaries:
For the year ended 31 March 2021
Iconkrishi Saveera Institute

KIMS Hospital

Institute of

of Medical

KIMS Hospitals

Total for the year

Particulars Enterprises ) N . . Kurnool Private ended 31 March
Private Limited Medical Sciences | Sciences Private Limited 2021
Private Limited Limited
Guarantee provided outstanding as at the beginning of the year 400.00 170.00 580.00 530.00 1,680.00
Guarantee provided during the financial year - - - - -
Guarantee provided settled/expired during the financial year 400.00 - L 400.00
Guarantee provided outstanding as at the end of the year - 170.00 580.00 530.00 1,280.00
For the vear ended 31 March 2020
Iconkrishi Saveera Institute

KIMS Hospital

KIMS Hospitals

Total for the year

Particulars Enterprises lrfsmule. of ,Of Medlc-nl Kurnool Private ended 31 March
Private Limited Medical Sciences | Sciences Private Limited 2020
Private Limited Limited
Guarantee provided outstanding as at the beginning of the year 400.00 170.00 550.00 - 1,120,00
Guarantee provided during the financial year - - 30.00 530,00 560.00
Guarantee provided settled/expired during the financial year . - - .
Guarantee provided outstanding as at the end of the year 400.00 170.00 580.00 530.00 1,680.00

Consequent lo the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has made contributions as stated below. The same is in line with activities
specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and activitics approved by the CSR committee:

For the year endec)

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2021) 31 March 2020
#)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 2122 15.14
b) Amount spent during the year
(i) Construction/acquisition of any assels
(it} On purpose other than (i) above: -
Promoting preyventive healthianes* 21,22 15.14
Total 21.22 15.14

MT" have significant influence

The above amounts include Rs. 21.29 (31 March 2020: Rs. 14.52 ) Spent by way of contribution to KIMS Foundation and Research Centre, a registered trust where
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2.34 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and cieditor confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. Manageiment monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the 'adjusted net debl’ to 'total equity' ralio.

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity
excluding adjustment reserve.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 was as follows:

Particulars As at As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020|
Total borrowings 1,287.71 1,827.15
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (345.85) (344.67)
Adjusted net debt 941.86 1,482.48
Total equity 9,015.59 6,183.66
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio - Gearing Ratio 10.45%, 23.97%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during and for year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no recall during the year due to breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing.
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2.35  Financial instruments : Fair value and visk management

A, Accounting classification and fair values
As at 31 March 2021

Carrying value Fair Value Fair value level

Finnncinl assels at amortised cost {Refer note bieluw)

Trade receivables 730.04 730.04

Investmenls 213223 2,132.23

Cash and cash equivalents 34585 34585

Baunk balances other than above 2,154 33 2,154.33

Loans 301.24 301.24

Other financial assets 22795 227.95
Total 5,891.64 5,891.64

Level 3

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Long-lerm borrowings (excluding current maturities) 677.84 677.84
Lease liabilities 25.62 25,62
Short-tenn borrowings 500.00 500.00
Trade payables 85185 851.85
Other financial liabilities 207.16 207.16
Total 2,262.47 226247

As at 31 March 2020

Carrying value Fair Value Fair value level

Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 991.51 99151

Investiments 1,779.60 1,779.60

Cash and cash equivalents 344.67 344.67

Bank balances other than above 50.13 50.13

Loans 218.54 218.54

Other financial assets 4650 46,50
Total 343095 343095 Level 3
Financial liabilities ac amortised cost {Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) 1,471.23 1,471.23

Lease liabilities 34.15 3415

Short-tenn borrowings 2081 20.81

Trade payables 779.78 779.78

Other financial liabilities 41777 417.77
Tatal 2,723,774 2,723.74

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other financials assets, other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities), short term borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for loans were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hicrarchy due to the
inclusion of unobservabte inputs including counterparty credit risk

The fair values of non-current borrowings (including current maturities) are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair value
hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs including own credit risk

B. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk

(i) Risk management framework
The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of Directors has
established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the
Board of Directors on its activities

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 1eflect changes in market conditions and Company’s activities. The Company, through its
training and management slandards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control enviromment in which all the employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Company's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of risk
managemnent framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit commitiee is assisted in ils oversight role by the intemal audit. Intemal audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit comumittee.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments
The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted afier obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from the trade receivables are
monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team
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2.35  Finmancial instraments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

(ii) Credit risk (continued)

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade receivables and contract assets based on the past and the
recent collection trend. The maximum exposure (o credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting (o Rs. 1,168.94 as on 31 March 2021 (31 March
2020: Rs. 1,349.98). The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

Allowance for credit losses As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 32567 298,04
Credit loss added 17.55 27.63
Closing bulanee 343,22 325.67
Trade receivable wrile ofI not routed through the above movement = 0.64

The Company uses a provision matrix (o determine the expected credit loss on the portfolio of its (rade reccivables and contract assets. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. The expected credit loss
allowance is based on the ageing of the days (he receivables are due in the provision matrix. Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company’s
trade receivables and contract assel using provision matnx:

Gross trade

0-180 days duc past  More than 180 days past receivables and

Not past due

due date due date
contract assets
For the year ended 31 March 2021 447 20 472.19 249 55 1,168.94
For the year ended 31 March 2020 167.09 722.43 460.46 1,349.98

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 Therefore the customer concentration risk
is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by intermational and
domestic credit rating agencies.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 1hat are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long tenn funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks (o ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet
all its normal operaling commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner.

T table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contretual maturitics of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2021:

Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year I -5 vears More than 5 years Total

Long-tenn borrowings (excluding current maturities) 677.84 - 679.71 - 679.71
Lease liabilities 2562 11.24 27.76 - 39.00
Short-term borrowings 500.00 500.00 - - 500.00
Trade payables 851.85 851.85 - - 851.85
Other financial liabilities 207.16 207.07 0.1 - 207.16
Total 2,262.47 1,570.16 Ti7.56 = 2271712

The table below provides detnils regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2020:

Particulars Carrying value  Less than | vear 1 -5 years Mare than 5 years Total

Long-term borrowings {excluding current maturitics) 147123 - 1,474.72 = 1,474.72
Lease liabilities 34.15 14.27 39.00 - 5327
Short-tenn borrowings 20.81 2081 - - 20.81
Trade payables 779.78 779.78 - - 77978
e firmeinl Halnlities 41777 417.68 0.09 - 417.77
Total 272374 1,232.54 1,513.81 - 2.746.35

The Company has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Company to repay the loan earlier than indicated in the above
table.

C. Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk exposure
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insrrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates The Company’s exposuie to

the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-tenn and short-term borrowings with variable interest rates

The expasure of the Company’s borrowing 1o mierest rate changes at the end of the reporting year are as bllows:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Variable mate long term borrowings {incliding curment maturities) and shon enn bomowings 78771 1,748.10
Total borrowings 781.71 1,748.10

(i) Sensitivity

Particulars Impact on profit or loss Impact on equity, net of tax

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR (7.88) (17.48) (5.89) (11.37)

1% decrease in MCLR 7.88 17.48 5.89 11.37
The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of g e loans and working capital loans from banks.

D. Currency risk
The Company is not exposed Lo currency risk.
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2.36 Income-tax

4. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended For the year ended 31

31 March 2021

March 2020

Current tax 06812 387.41
Taxes for earlier years (10.34) (19.93)
Deferred lax atlributable to temporary differences (1.64) (113.49)
Tax expenses for the year 656.14 253.99
b. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2021 For the year ended 31 March 2020
Before tax Tax (expsinse)/ Net of tax Before tax Tax (cxpense)/ Net of tax
henefit benefit
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans {6.40) .61 (4.79) (12.08) 3.04 (9.04)

¢. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended

31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Profit before tax 2,542.63 1,465.05

Enacted lax rates 25.168% 25.168%
Tax expense at enacted rates 639.93 368.72

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating taxable income

Non-deductible expenses 26.55 23.50
Impact of change in rate of tax 3] (118.30)
Adjustment in respect of income-tax for earlier years (10.34) (19.93)
Total 656.14 253.99
d. Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following

Particulars As at

31 March 2021

AST‘
31 March 2020

Deferred tax asset

Expected credit loss for trade receivables 86.38 81.97
Provision for employee benefits 65.00 53.19
Others 237 3.37
Total deferred tax asset 153.75 138.52
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment (liability) 454,22 441.66
Others . 0.66 1.25
Total deferred tax liability 454.89 44291
Deferred tax liability (net) (301.14) (304.39)
(i) Movement in temporary differences
Experisd Provision for
i employee  Others - assets Pro'perty, ph.ml.a.nd Others - liability Total
trade equipment (liability)
s benefits
receivables
Balance as at 1 April 2019 104.15 59.22 6.34 (588.93) (1.69) (420.91)
Recognised in profit or loss during 2019-20 (22.18) (9.07) (2.98) 147.28 0.44 113.49
Recognised in OCI during 2019-20 - 3.04 - - ~ 3.04
Balance as at 31 March 2020 81.97 53.19 3.36 (441.65) (1.25) (304.38)
Recognised in profit or loss during 2020-21 4.42 10,19 {1.00) (12.57) 0.59 1.64
Recognised in OCI during 20202 | - 1.61 - - - 1.61
Balance as at 31 March 2021 86.38 65.00 2.36 (454.22) (0.66) 1301.14)
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2.37 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information
Sel out below is the disaggrepation of the Company's revenue from contracls with customers:

For the vear ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Income from hospital services 6,175.20 5,049 75

Income from phannacy 2,977.66 2,666.59

Total revenue [rom contracts with customers 9,152.86 7,716.34

India 9,152.86 7.716.34

Qutside India = -

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over time 6,175.20 5,049.75

Goods transferred at a point of time 2,977.66 2,666.59

Total revenue from contracts with customers 9,152.86 7,716.34

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

Contract price 9,836.74 8,282.44

Less: Discounts and disallowances (683.88) (566.10)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 9,152.86 7,716.34

Contract balances

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 1 April 2019
Trade receivables 730.04 991.51 1,000.30
Contract assets 95.68 32.80 56.54
Contract liabilities 123.69 18.90 35.70

Contract liability: During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 18.90 from advance received from patients
outstanding as on 31 March 2020. During the financial year ended 3] March 2020, the company Jas recognised revenue of Rs. 35.70 from advance
received from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2019. It expects similarly to recognise revenue in year ended 31 March 2022 from the closing balance

of advance froin customers as at 31 March 2021.

Contract assct: During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the company has transferred Rs. 32.80 of contract assets as at 31 March 2020 to trade
receivables on completion of perfonnance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has transferred Rs. 56.54 of contract

assets as at 31 March 2019 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.
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2.38 Investments during the year ended 31 March 2021
(i) The Company has increased its stake in KIMS Hospitals Enterprise Private Limited from 7526 % to 86 32% througth secondary purchase of 2,713.307
equity shares from existing shareholders for a total amount of Rs. 352.73. The shares were purchased at Rs. 130 (premium of Rs.120) per share. The
same has been shown as non current investments in the standalone financial statements

Investments during the year ended 31 March 2020

(ii) The Company has entered into a share purchase agreement dated 01 April 2019 with the existing shareholders of KIMS Hospitals Kumnool Private
Limited to acquire 55% equity shares at a (otal consideration of Rs. 81 68. The same has been shown as non current investments in the standalone
financial statements

(iii) The Company has increased its stake in KIMS Hospitals Emerprise Private Limited from 50.27 % (o 75.26% through secondary purchase of 6,134,434
equity shares from existing shareholders in three tranches for a total amount of Rs. 710.34. In the first two tranche 4,357,021 shares were purchased at
Rs.110 (premium of Rs. 100) per share and in the third tranche 1,777,413 shares were purchased at Rs 130 (premium of Rs 120) per share. The same
has been shown as non current investments in the standalone financial statements.

2.39 The Company did not have any long tenm contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foresceable losses. The Company
does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

2.40 Global Health Pandemic
The outbreak of COVID-19 in many countries has brought about disruptions to businesses around the world and uncertainty to the global economy. The
Company is closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of it’s business, including how it will impact its employees, vendors and
business partners. The Company based on the information available to date, both internal and external, considered the uncertainty relating to the COVID-
19 pandemic in assessing its unpact. Based on the current estimates, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of assets, and does not
foresee any material adverse impact on its operations. As the outbreak continues to evolve, the Company will continue to closely monitor any material
changes to future economic condition.

2.41 There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Krishna Institute of
Medical Sciences Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), comprising of the
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
including other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statcment of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Ind AS linancial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of such subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2021, their consolidated profit including
other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the ‘ Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with-the *Code ot Ethics’ issued by the lgstitute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP tdentity No. AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statement

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies includgg in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
Supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited
by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (b) of the section titled ‘Other
Matters’ in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, whose Ind AS financial
statements include total assets of Rs. 128.10 million as at 31 March 2021, and total revenues of Rs. Nil
and net cash outflows of Rs. 0.19 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
Consolidated Ind AS financials statements. These Ind AS financial statement and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information
and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as
noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) Welthe other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements; -

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on 31 March 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies incorporated in India, is disqualified
as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 17 to this report;
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(&) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been paid /
provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India to their directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
its consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated Ind AS financial
statements — Refer Note 2.24 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses in during the year ended 31 March 2021;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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am . —\ T —
per Navneet Rai Kabra dk‘,\moumﬁms .'«'I}
Partner O\ /x/
Membership Number: 102328 Q@\;‘/

~UDIN: 21102328 AAAADD8903
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021
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Annexure 1 to the Independent auditor’s report of even date on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Krishna Institute of
Medical Sciences Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group , which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

Other matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to these 4 subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary
incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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Partner D,;O ACCON :-':_lt}; i-,;
Membership Number: 102328 VSN %/
UDIN: 21102328 AAAADD8903 NIDERAES

Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(All amounts arc in million of Indian Rupees except share data o unless othaiwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property . ptant and equipment
Capital work-in-progiess
Goodwill
Other intangible assels
Right-of-use assels
Financial assets

(i) Loans

(ii) Other financial assels
Detferred lax assets (net)
Non-curent lax assels (nel)
Other non-current assels
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assels
(i) Trade 1eceivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assels
Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equily share capitat

Other equity

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-conlrolling interests
Total Equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Lease liabilities

(iii) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(i) Trade payables

(2) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and

As at

Asat

(b) Total outstanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iv) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Current tax liability (net)
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Significant accounting policies

orc
Note 31 March 2021 31 Muireh 2020
21 (a) 7,706.26 748881
20 () 92 4 2212
239 847.75 847.75
21 (b) 247.43 26239
125 509.34 56081
2.2(a) 163.72 4718
2.3(a) 28 48 113
237 2935 14.16
28 10370 386.58
24 12012 129,48
9,849.59 9.760.61

25 24085 30377
26 1,098.19 132268
2.7(2) 52129 40514
2.7(b) 2,323.13 5213
2.2(b) 2263 17.53
2.3(b) 234.99 54.26
29 70.87 4278
4,511.95 2,198.29

14,361.54 11,958.90

210(a) 775.93 744.90
2,10 (b) 786141 5,236.35
8,637.34 5,981.25

124.61 133.05

8,761.95 6,114.30

210 1,846.03 2,687.17
225 43340 455.53
2.12(a) 5.59 7.10
213 160.64 137.08
2.17(a) 1237 12.86
237 358.31 356.73
2,816.34 3,656.47

214 552.67 10111
225 25.62 2400

215

17.90 25.08

1,300.80 1,209.26

2.12(b) 46726 628.13
2,16 104.86 7347
2.17(b) 27.13 127.08

87.01 )
2.783.25 2.188.13
14,361.54 11,958.90
1.3

‘The accompanying notes are refeied above form an integral part of the consoliduted Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report on even date aliached

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accounlants

ICALFinm Registration no.. 101049W/ E300004

Nami b €,

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Lirgited

CIN: U5S101TG1973PLC040558

4 NI

Managing Director
DIN: I0008YES

Vikas Maheshwarl
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021

D bhinay

Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01681273

Uma Shankar Mantha

Company Secretary
Membership no:A21035



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amounts are inmllion of Indian Rupees except share data o1 unless olherwise stated)

Revenue

Revenue fiom operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Puichase of medical consumables. drugs and suigical instruments

{Increase)/ Decrease in imy enlories o medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments
Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax expense

Tax expense

- Current tax

- Deferred 1ax credit

- Adjustinent of tax relating lo earlier years

Total tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement of defined benefit plans

- Income lax efTect

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interesls
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share (face value of share Rs. 10 each)
- Basic
- Diluted

Significant aceounting policies

For the vear ended For the year ended

Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

218 13,299.37 11.226.45
219 10165 60.83
13,401.02 11,287.28

2.826.39 257217

220 62.92 (30 49)
2.2 2.202.09 1,980 46
202 32497 399.42
2.1(a) & (b),2.25 695.36 706.10
2,23 4,499.14 4,254.36
10,610.87 9.882.07

2,790.15 1,405.26

237 778.39 43298
237 (33.03) (154.79)
237 (10.00) (23.65)
735.36 254.54

2.054.79 1,150.72

(6.28) (13.43)

1,64 342
(4.64) (10.01)

2,050.15 1,140.71

2,012.19 1,191.83
42,60 @rin

2,054.79 1.150.72
(4.98) (9.59)
0.34 0.42)
(4.64) (10.01)

2,007.21 1,182.24
42.94 (41.53)

2,050.15 1,140.71

228 26.87 16.00
228 26.42 1587

1.3

The acienpaying noles are teterred shove form an integral part of the cansulidated Ind AS financial statements,

As per our report on even dale attached

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanls
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

Namut- €,

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021

Ut Madadosm

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

LR ONNT,

Managing Director
DIN: 00008985 o]

Madd e

Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary
Membership no:421035

Ablihay
veculive Officer

Vikas Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021



Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TG1973PL.C040558

Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data o1 unless otherwise stated)

For the vear ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

A Cash flows from operating activities

Piofit beforc 1ax 2.790.15 1,405.26
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisalion expenses 695.36 706.10
Finance cost 32497 39942
Expecled credit loss for trade 1eceiy ables 38.77 46.07
Trade receivables written ol 8.26 568
Interest income (57.99) (12.63)
Loss on sale of pioperty, plant and equipment (nel) 10.79 1252
Liabilities/provisions no longe: required wrilten back (7.52) (4.54)
Renta! income (7.09 {7.86)
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,795.70 2,550.02
Change in assels and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 6292 (30.48)
(Increase)/decrease in (rade receivables 177.46 (132.06)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets and other assets {33811) 29.90
Increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities and provisions 2392] 13434
Cash provided by operations 3,937.18 2,551.72
Income taxes paid, net of refunds (377.44) {536.72)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 3,559.74 2,015.00
B Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (944.26) (519.80)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 842 513
Acquisition of a subsidiary, nel of cash acquired - (17.10)
Acquisition of non-controlling interesls (352.73) (710.34)
Lease income received 7.09 7.86
Interest received 35.47 11.05
Redemplion of bank deposils (having original maturily of more than three months) 113.82 146.45
Investiment in bank deposils (having original maturity of more than (hree months) (2.409.59) (170.36)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (3,541.78) (1,247.11)
C Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-tenn borrowings (1,413.97) (715.38)
Receipts of long-tenn borrowings 455.05 808.76
Proceeds/ (Repayment) of short-term borrowings (net) 451.56 (116.47)
Payment of lease obligations (including interest on lease liabilities) (73.13) (90.15)
Proceeds from exercise of share warrants 950.23 -
Finance costs (271.55) (330.1-h
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 98.20 (443.38)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 116.%8 324,51
Cash and cash equivalents at Lhe beginning of the year 405.14 80.63
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 521.29 405.14
Note:

a) The consolidated stalement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (Ind AS 7)-

Slatement of cash flows:
b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Cash on hand 15.21 24.04
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 306.08 301.10
- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 200.00 80.00
Total 521.29 405.14
The accompanying noles are referred above fonn an integral part of (he consolidated Ind AS financial slatements,
As per our report on even dale attached
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Jfor and on behalf of (he Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
ICAI Finn Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004 CIN: USS10ITGI973PLCO4G5 58

Naywia- i t—

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

A\ hlosdd,

Managing Director
DIN: 00008985

Vikas Maheshwari

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 May 2021 Date: 25 May 2021

oo i s

Uma Shankar Mantha
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership no:A21035
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: USS5101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

1.1  Group Overview

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences
Limited (“the Company” or “Parent™) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March
2021. The company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at D. No. 1-8-31/1, Minister's
Road, Secunderabad, Telangana, India - 500003.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services. Information on the
Group’s structure is provided in Note 1.3A. Information on other related party relationships of the Group is provided
in Note 2.27.

The Company was originally incorporated on 26 July 1973 under the name “Jagjit Singh and Sons Private Limited”
which was subsequently changed to “Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited” on 2 January 2004.
The Company was converted into a public limited company under the Companies Act, 1956 on 29 January 2004

and consequently, the name was changed to “Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited”.

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
25 May 2021.

1.2 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

a) Statement of compliance:

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule IIT), as applicable to the CFS.

All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data, unless otherwise stated.

b) Basis of measurement:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilitics Fair value or refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Defined benefit plan - plan assets measured at fair value

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is also the parent
company’s functional currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

d) New and amended standards

i.  Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations
The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist without including all of
the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that
occur on or after the beginning of that period. This amendment had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but may impact future periods should the Group enter into any business combinations.

ii. Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of, nor is there expected
to be any future impact to the Group.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. The
amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

e) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Group’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have made in
the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the Consolidated financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note 2.37 — Recognition of deferred tax assets, availability
of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
Refer Note 2.26 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions. The parameter most
subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond correspond
to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as

liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments. See Note 2.32 and 2.33 for further disclosures.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the
leased asset).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher ofits fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a Discounted
cash flow model (“DCF model”). The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will
enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate
used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group.

Classification of financial instruments as equity

The Company has entered into Shareholders agreement (‘SHA™) with private equity (“PE” or the “Investors”)
investors for purchase of equity shares. As per the terms of the SHA, the Company needs to provide an exit to
Investor either through an Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) based on best effort basis, till such time that IPO is
successful or Marketed sale process based on best effort basis, which are in the control of the Company.
Accordingly, the Company has classified and measured the aforesaid instruments as equity.




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: USS5101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

1.3 Significant accounting policies
A. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 March 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)

e Exposure, or rights, to variablc rcturns from its involvement with the investee, and

= The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

* The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the
other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as
that of the parent company, i.c., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is
different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:
a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its

subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets
and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

r '. p
\uf‘: > -
; J
\




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory, property, plant and equipment are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses
may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12
Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting
from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on the basis
of the financial statements of the following subsidiaries which are principally engaged in the business of rendering
medical and healthcare services.

Name of the Company Country of Ownership interest (in %)
incorporation | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Arunodaya  Hospitals  Private  Limited | India 57.83 57.83
(‘AHPL’)
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited | India 86.32 75.26
(‘KHEPL") - - B
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private | India 51.00 51.00
Limited (‘ICIMSPL”) (Note 1)
Saveera Intitute of Medical Sciences Private | India 80.00 80.00
Limited (‘SIMSPL’) (Note 1) ] )
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited (‘KHPL”) India 100.00 100.00
KIMS Swastha Private Limited (‘KSPL") India 100.00 100.00
KIMS Cuddles Private Limited (‘KCPL’) | India 100.00 100.00
(Note 2)
KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Prvate | India 100.00 100.00
Limited (‘KHBPL”)
KIMS Hospital Kumool Private Limited | India 55.00 55.00
(‘KHKPL*) (Formerly known as “Kurnool
| Rainbow Hospitals Private Limited”)
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
Notes:

1. The Company has acquired the controlling stake in ICIMSPL and SIMSPL on 05 May 2018 and 05
September 2018, respectively.

2. KCPL has filed necessary closure forms for strike off with RoC on February 9, 2021.
B. Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present
obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

*  Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

e Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

e Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date,

e  Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

When the Group acquiresea business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind
AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. If
the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and
it’s subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration
transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the
reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no
clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without
routing the same through OCIL.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: USS5101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

C. Current-non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

1. It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal operating
cycle;
ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
ii. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

tv.  itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
i.  itis expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle;
ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
iv.  the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the reporting date.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

D. Fair value measurement:

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
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Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

The Group's Chief Financial officer determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement and for other non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the Group's Chief Financial officer analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in
the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources
to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee and the
Group's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained

above.
Lo\ N8RS
o> &
.Ir. :_ i o
W [ (=
i < | Secunderabad) @
e 5
L?:'\\ C'J"b

N2

TR




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting year during
which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is
included in Note 2.33 — financial instruments.

E. Revenue from contract with customer

The Group’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services and sale of
pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The
performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical professional
services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for components of
variable consideration which constitutes discounts, estimated disallowances and any other rights and obligations as
specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers and deposited
back to the respective statutory authorities. Revenue is recognised at the point in time for the outpatient hospital
services when the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With respect to the inpatients hospital
services who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date, revenue is recognised over the period
to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy and food and beverages (other than hospital services), where the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

Revenue from admission fees, tuition fees and other fees for academic courses are recognised on the due date for
the receipt of fees and apportioned over the academic term on a time proportion basis. Fee waivers, discounts,
rebates provided to students are reduced from fee received.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transfertring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the

amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Group applies the most likely amount method or the expected value
method to estimate the variable consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of
variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most
likely amount is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value method is used
for those with more than one volume threshold. The Group then applies the requirements on constraining estimates
in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price and
recognised as revenue,

Contract Balances:

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients who are
undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets
in section (m) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial instruments - initial
recognition and subsequent measurement.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded using
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in other income in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

F. Income-tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
and loss except to the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income-tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
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* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e«  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at
that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred
tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from
new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of
goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the
principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the
year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the
concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit
is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created
by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The company reviews
the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer
probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

G. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost net of accumulated impairment, if any. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost, net of tax / duty credit availed, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it located. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred. ’

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor,
any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its intended use, and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date are
recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such
date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, Plant and Equipment recognised
as of April 01, 2016 (date of transition to Ind AS) measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value
as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.
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De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de- recognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is
derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as estimated by the
management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation
of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Group has estimated the following useful lives to
provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment which are in compliance with the Schedule II of
Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Buildings 60

Medical and surgical equipment 13-14

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has estimated the
useful lives of Property, plant and equipment as below:

* Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
e Leasehold land is perpetual lease without any limited useful life and hence is not amortised.

e Teasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease or estimated useful life, whichever is
shorter.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

H. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
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for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

De recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its other intangibles recognised as of April 01,
2016 (date of transition to Ind AS) measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed
cost as at the date of transition.

Amortisation
The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of
obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known

technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows
from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software 6
Brand 5
Non-Compete fee 5
Customer Contract 5

I. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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J. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets
are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Impairment of non-financial assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.




Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
CIN: US5101TG1973PLC040558
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

K. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost or net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The Group follows the weighted average
method for determining the cost of such inventories. The Comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on
item by item basis.

L. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets
and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate
is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case,
this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries in which the Group
operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment Josses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as
a revaluation increase.
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Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 March and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 March at the CGU level, as
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired

M. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses
its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will
arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to
the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or
a cash refund.
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Defined benefit plans

The Group’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of a defined
benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned and returned for
services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The calculation
of Group’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the year in which they nccur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the year by applying
the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined benefit liability (asset) as a result of
contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The Group recognises gains and losses in the curtailment
or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss on the
earlier of amendment or curtailment.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative service is
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g, under short term cash bonus, if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of the past service provided by the
employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Compensated absences
As per the leave encashment policy of the Group, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave during the
calendar year and lapses at the end of the calendar year. Accrual towards compensated absences at the end of the

financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
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result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The group recognizes expected cost of
short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

The group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken
to the statement of consolidated profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

N. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial assets at
initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business
model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in to following categories
e Financial assets at amortised cost
e Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)
¢ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

)
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:
e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows:;
and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade
receivables, and loan to an associate and loan to a director included under other non-current financial assets. For
more information on receivables, refer to Note 2.33.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

¢ The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
asscts measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.

The Group’s debt instruments are not fair value through OC] assets.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss,
even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

l. ...jrr
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Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

o Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

The Group considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due.

‘The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial
liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis and financial guarantee
contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCIL These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to consolidated statement of profit & loss. However, the group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial instrument are classified as a liability or equity components based on the terms of the contract and in
accordance with Ind AS 32 (Financial instruments: Presentation). Financial instrument issued by the Group
classified as equity is carried at its transaction value and shown within " equity". Financial instrument issued by the
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Company classified as liability is initially recognised at fair value (issue price). Subsequent to initial recognition,
such Financial instrument is fair valued through the statement of profit or loss. On modification of Financial
instrument from liability to equity, the Financial instrument is recorded at the fair value of Financial instrument
classified as equity and the difference in fair value is recorded as a gain/ loss on modification in the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109
and the amount recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of Ind AS 115.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

O. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they
are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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P. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders of parent
company for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of parent company
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number
of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

Q. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Board of Directors is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

R. Corporate social responsibility

The Group charges its Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure to the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
S. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the

reporting year, the impact of such events is adjusted within the consolidated financial statements. Otherwise, events
after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.
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Tolul sl
Saitillian Freehold land l‘:::'” Leaschold L "'::;::l“" Phast el Office Blectrioal (e Funiiand property,  Cupitsl work-
" improvement N quip Ritures plantand  In- progress
(refer Note 3) equipment 2
Gros carrying amount
Balance ns ul 1 April 2019 11955 mn 154 132545 o mie 3420 38668 106 58 Wiy7 5035 8,56542 »
isitiom through business . ~ .
(refir note 2. 34) 19390 614y 1236 e 3862 628 k) 005 M559
Adoption of Ind AS 116 (refer nate 2 25) {122335) (4243) " ) - (164 98) .
Additions Y380 2017 70 48 35780 T 17.06 2519 30 a7 1595 693182 L
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Capilalised during the ywr - . . - . [EEAR)]
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{refer note 2 34)
Adoption of Ind AS 116 . . .
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Balance us at 1 April 2019 6.70 11,00 752.76 5547 3146 14858 61.69 103.00 15.80 134846
Adoption of Ind AS 116 (refer nole 2 25) - - (2797) - - 2797)
Depraviation charge for the year 4238 7261 31897 2158 1064 5835 798 4105 80l 61456
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| Buildings amounting to gross block Rs 75 06 (31 March 2020: Rs 75 06) aid net block Rs. 56 05 (31 March 2020: Rs 56 88) are constructal on the Land taken on lease from promoters for a period of 30 years withoul making any upfront payment and nawswable at

i optiom of the Company

2 Refernote 2.1 and 2 14 for details of asarls pledged as security
3 Leasc hold land that is namaining in PPE schredule is related 10 land taken on perpetual lease
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21 () Othier Intangible assels

Particubirs Software Brani Soi G pele Cpstomer contract Tutal

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 1 April 2019 56.50 1310 2830 188.02 285.92

Acquisilion through business combinations (refer note 2 34}) 1274 = - 12.14

Additions 20.32 E - - 20.32

Disposals/adjustmenls (.77 . = : (.77
Balance as at 31 March 2020 75.05 25.24 28.30 188.02 316.61

Additions 15.09 - 15.09

Balance as at 31 March 2021 90.14 25.24 28.30 188.02 331.70

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2019 14.83 1.30 2.81 287 21.80

Amortisation charge for the year 12.78 5.06 5.68 9.03 3254

Disposals/adjustments (0.12) - - : (0.12)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 27.49 6.36 8.49 11.90 54.22

Amortisation charge for the year 13.07 5.05 5.66 6.27 30.05

Balance as at 31 March 2021 40.56 11.41 14.15 18.17 84.27

Carrying amounts (net)

At 31 March 2020 41.56 15.88 19.81 176.12 262,30

At 31 Mareh 2021 49,58 11.83 14.15 169.85 24743
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Notes to the C lidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees cxcepl share dala or unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.2 Loans (at amortised cost )
(Unsecured, considered good)
(a) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties
Securily deposits 163.72 47.18
Total 163.72 47.18
(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Securily deposits 22.63 17.53
Total 22.63 17.53

No loans are due from directors o1 other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any loans are due from finms or privale
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member

2.3 Other financial assets (at amortised cost )
(Unsecuied, Considered good)

(a) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties
Bank deposils (due (0 mature after 12 months of reporting date)* 2581 104
Interest accrued on bank deposits 2.67 0.09
Total 28.48 1.13
*Deposits amounting (0 Rs 4.23 (31 March 2020: Rs 1.04) are reslrictive in nature as il pertains to bank guarantee

{b) Current
Unsecured
-To parties other than related parties (Considered good)
Contracl assels (Unbilled revenue) (Refer nole 2.31) 133.52 44.39
Other advances . 6.57
IPO expenses recoverable {Refer nole (i) below) 78.23 =
Interest accrued on bank deposits 2324 3.30
-To parties other than related parties
Other advances - credit impaired 032 0.32
Less: Other advances - credit impaired (0.32) (0.32)
Total 234.99 54.26

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has incurred share issue expenses in connection with proposed public offer of equity shares of which Rs. 78,23
is accounted for various services received for Initial Public Offering (IPO). As per the Offer Agreemenl entered between the Company and the selling shareholders, the
selling shareholders shall reimburse the share issue expenses in proportion lo the respective shares offered for sale. Accordingly, the Company will recover the
expenses incurred in connection with the Issue on completion of PO and therefore, the amount has been carried forward and disclosed under the head "IPO expenses
recoverable” (to the extent of not written off or adjusted).

2.4 Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances 39.90 75.85
Balance with government authorities 40.57 40.57
Prepaid expenses At.65 13.06
Total 121.12 129.48

2.5 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 240.85 303.77
Total 240.85 303.77

2.6 Trade receivables (at amortised cost) *

Unsecured

Trade receivables - Considered good 1,098.19 1,322.67
Trade receivables - credit impaired 411.87 373.10
Total receivables 1,510.06 1,695.78

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Less: Trade receivables - credit impaired (411.87) (373.10)

Total trade receivables 1,098.19 1,322.68

* Includes amount receivables from related party amounting to Rs. 1.90 (31 March 2020: Rs. 2.13) (Refer note 2.27).

No (rade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any trade or other receivable
are due fiom finns or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on tenns of 30 lo 90 days.
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(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise staled)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.7 Cash and bank balances
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1521 2404
Balances with banks
- on currenl accounls 306.08 30i1.10
- on deposil accounls (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 200.00 80.00
521.29 405.14
b) Bank balances other than (a) above
Deposils with remaining maturity less than [2 months * 232313 52.13
2,323.13 52.13
Totalt 2,844.42 457.27

Cash at banks earns interest at floaling rates based on daily bank deposit rates Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months,
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam interest at the respective short-tem deposit rates.

*Deposits amounting 10 Rs 1.96 (March 2020: Rs 31.08) are restrictive in nature as it perains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are maturing within 12 months of
the reporting date

¢)  Reconciliation of financial liabilities forming part of financing activities in accordance with Ind AS 7:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Borrowings (Long-term and short-term):
Opening balance 3,207.79 2,880.97
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) borrowings, net (507.36) (23.09)
Additi hrough busi combinati - 339.30
Non-cash items (Borrowing cost amortisation and interest accrual on financial liabilities) 4.25 1061
Closing balance 2,704.68 3.207.79

Lease liabilities:
Opening balance 479.53 -
- 456.35

Recognised on adoption of Ind AS 116 (refer note 2.25)

Reclassification on adoption of Ind AS 116 - 27.09

Additions 1.58 26.95

Interest accrued on lease liabilities 51.04 59.29

Payment of lease liabilities (73.13) (90.15)

Closing balance 459.02 479.53
2.8 Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance 1ax (net of provision for taxation) 113,70 658

Total 103,70 386.58
2.9 Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to suppliers 2553 17.09

Prepaid expenses 27.30 10.28

Staff advances 18.02 15.39

Qther receivables (0,02 0.0

Total 70.87 42.78
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(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data o1 unless otherwise stated)

2.10 (a) Equity share capital

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

As at As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Authorised share capital
Equity shares

95,000.000 (31 Maich 2020: 95.000.000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach 950.00 950.00
950.00 950.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

77.593,283 (31 March 2020: 74.489.552) equity shates of Rs. |0 each fully paid-up 77593 744.90
775.93 744.90

Reconciliation of number of equity sharcs of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

At the commencement of the year 74,489,552 744.90 74,489,552 744.90

Add: Shares issued during the year 3,103,731 31.03 .

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 77.593.283 775.93 74.489.552 744.90

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up:

The Company has only one class of equily shares having par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each equity share holder is entitled to one vole per equily share held. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be enlitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of cquily shaies held by the aharcholdera

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement along with General Atlantic Singapore KH Ple Lid
(“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor”) and other existing shareholders through which new investor have purchased few shares from the exisling
shareholders and enlire shares from the old investor. As per the lerms of the SHA, the Company needs to provide an exit 1o new investor either through an [nitial Public
Offering ("IPO™) based on best effort basis, till such time that [PO is successful or Marketed sale process based on best effort basis, which are in the control of the Company
Accordingly, the Company has classified and measured Lhe aforesaid instruments as equity.

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
Dr. B Bhaskar Rao 21,407,895 27.59% 18,304,164 24.57%
General Allanlic Singapore KH Pie Ltd 31,739,906 4091% 31,739,906 42.61%
B. Seenaiah 4,582517 5.91% 4,582,517 6.15%
Bollineni Ramanaiah Memorial Hospilals Privale Limiled 5,228,628 6.74% 5228628 7.02%

Agprepate ber of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up allotted as

bonus shares by capitalisation of securities premium - * - 61,603,374

The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet dates.
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. As at As at
2:10(b) Other equity 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(i) Securities premium (refer below note 1)
Balance as per las! financial slatements 7,525.80 7,525.80
Add: Shaies issued during (he year 92230 .
Closing balance 8,448.10 7,525.80
(ii)  Adjustment reserve (refer below note 2)
Balance as per lasl financial slalements 57 64 57.64
Movement during the year :
Closing balance 57.64 57.64
(i) Share warrants (refer below note 3)
Balance as per last financial slatements 310 3.10
Less: Share issued during the year (3.10) -
Closing balance - 310
(iv)  Retained earnings (refer below note 4)
Balance as per last financial slalements {2,350.19) (2,911.28)
Add: Acquisilion of non-controlling interests (refer note 2.34) (301 .35) (621.15)
Add: Profit for the year 2,012.19 1,191.83
Add: Other comprehensive loss for the year (4.98) (9.5%
Closing balance (644.33) (2,350.19)
7.861.41 5,236.35
1. Securities premium
Securities Premiwn is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
2. Adjustment reserve
During the year ended 31 March 2014, pursuant (o the Scheme of Armrangement approved by Honourable High Court of Andhra Pradesh, the Company has allotted 306,069
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each Lo the Share holders of the Bollineni Hearl Centre Limited (“transferor Company™) against 4,455,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each outstanding
in the transferor Company in the ratio of 9 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every 131 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the Transferor Company. The difference of Rs. 41.49
on account of the above share swap has been added to the Adjustment Reserve of the Company as per the Scheme.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, pursuant to the Schemne of Arrangement approved by the High Court, the Company allotted 969,231 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to
the shareholders of the Bollineni Ramanaiah Memorial Hospitals Private Limited (“Demerged Company”) against 2,100,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each outstanding in the
Demerged Company in the ratio of 6 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every 13 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the Demerged Company. The difference between the
consideration payable and the value of net assets taken over as per the Scheme amounting to Rs. 16.15 has been added 10 the Adjustment Reserve of the Company as per the
Scheme
3. Share warrants
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement (SSPA) along with General Atlantic Singapore KH
Pte Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor”) and other existing shareholders In accordance with the aforesaid SSPA, the Company has issued
3,103,731 number of share warrants to Dr B Bhaskara Rao. Each of these share warrants are convertible into | equily share of Rs. 10 each at a fulure date prior to filing of
Draft Red Hearing Prospectus with Securities Exchange Board of India as per the terms of SSPA. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company received Rs. | each
against these share warrants issued aggregating to Rs. 3.10. The share warrants were converted to 3,103,731 equity shares on 16 February 202] at the rale of Rs 307.16
(including securilies premium of Rs 297.16)(Refer note 2. 10(a) & 2.10 (b)(1)).
4. Retained earnings
Retained eamings are the profils/(loss) that the Company has eamedfincurred (ill date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distribulions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings includes re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of laxes thal will not be reclassified to Stalement of Profit and Loss.
Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company and eligible for distribution Lo shareholders, in case where it is having posilive balance representing net eamings
till date.
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2.11 Long-term borrowings (at amortised cost )

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Non- current Current Non- current Current
Secured
Term loans from banks
- HDFC Bank equipment loan - 1 (1efer note 1) 63.21 15.85
- HDFC Bank equipment loan - 2 (1efer nole ii) - = 10591 9.37
- HDFC Bank vehicle loan - 2 (1efer nolte iii} 231 072 3.04 0.67
- HDFC Bank term loan (1efer note iv) 8324 66 61 - -
- Federal bank tenin loan (refer note v) 143 15 65 83 62516 167.74
- Federal bank tenm loans (refer note vi and vii) 9381 2043 114.66 18.61
- HDFC Bank term loan (refer note viii) 535266 45.06 493.44 31.00
- HDFC Bank term loan (1efer note ix) 436.17 63.29 378.03 3413
- Yes bank tenn loan {refer note x) - 226,77
Total loans from banks (A) 131134 261.%4 2.010.22 277.36
Term loans from other parties
- NIIF Infiastructure Finance Limited (refer nole xi) 334.69 44.04 676.95 142.15
Total loans from other parties (B) 534.69 44.04 676.95 142.15
Total (A) + (B) 1,846.03 305.98 2,687.17 419.51

Notes:
Refer currenl malturities of long term borrowings under note 2.12 (b)

i -Temm loan - | from HDFC bank was taken by the Company lowards purchase ot equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the
medical equipment out of sanctioned facility, carrying an interest rate ranging from 9.5% p.a. fixed (31 March 2020: 9.5% p.a. fixed).
- This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instalments starting from July 2017 to June 2024,
- The loan was pre closed during the year ended 31 March 2021

- Term loan - 2 from HDFC bank was taken by the Company towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of firsl and exclusive charge on the
medical equipment out of sanctioned facility, carrying an interest rate of 1'Y MCLR + 0.65% (31 March 2020: 1Y MCLR + 0.65%). Also secured by
personal guarantee of Dr B Bhaskara rao,

- This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instalinents slarting from January 2019 to December 2024.

- The loan was pre closed during the year ended 31 March 2021

iii. - Term loan from HDFC Bank of KHEPL is secured by first exclusive hypothecalion charge on Lhe vehicle acquired from the said loans. The loan
carries interesl rate of 8.01% (31 March 2020: 8.01%) per annum.
- These loans are repayable in 84 equated monthly instalments starling from January 2018 10 December 2024.

iv. Term loan from HDFC Bank of KHEPL is secured by exclusive charge on entire Property, Plant and Equipment and exclusive charge on all current
assets including card swipes of the KHEPL. Also secured by personal guaranlee of Dr B Bhaskara Rao and Di. B. Abhinay.
- The loan carries interest rate of 9% floating linked to bank's | year MCLR (31 March 2020: Nil).
- The loan is repayable in 3| equated monthly instalments starting from November 2020 to May 2023.

v - Federal Bank lerm loan was taken by the Company and consists of | loan (31 March 2020: 3 loans). The first two loans were secured by exclusive
charge on exisling hospital al Rajahmundry and personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The (hird loan is secured by Pari Passu first charge on
Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company (excluding Rajatunundry hospital) and personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao and Dr. B.
Abhinay. Also the loans are secured by pledge of minimum 29% shareholding of the KIMS Hospital Privale Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

- The loans are repayable in 60 to 66 equal monthly instalments starting from May 2019 to April 2025 and carries an interesl rate ranging from 8.85%
t0 9.50% p.a. (31 March 2020: 9.50% 10 9.80% p.a.)
- 2 loans were prepaid during the year ended 31 March 2021.

vi  Federal bank - Term loan of ICIMSPL is secured by way of first charge on the medical equipment, other movable assets, building improvements and
fixtures of ICIMSPL and second charge on entire current assets of ICIMSPL. Further, it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr.B.Abhinay, Dr. B
Bhaskara Rao, Dr. T. Sai Balaram Krishna and Dr. P. Satish Kumar. The loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company
- The loan is repayable in 72 equated monthly instalments starting September 2019 and carries an interest rate of 8 40% - 9.30% per annum (31 March
2020: 9.50% per annum) with annual reset (linked to | year MCLR)

vii  Federal bank - Tenn loan of ICIMSPL is secured by way of first charge on medical equipment {minimum | .19x cover), wilh |5% margin, of the
ICIMSPL and second charge on enlire current assets of the ICIMSPL. Further, it is secured by personal guaraniee of Dr.B.Abhinay, Dr. Bhaskara Rao
Bollineni, Dr. T Sai Balaram Krishna and Dr. P. Satish Kumar. The loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by the company
- The loan is repayable in 72 equated monthly instalments starting April 2020 and carries an interest rate of 8.50% 9.50% per annum (3 | March 2020:
9.80%% per annum) with annual reset {linked to | year MCLR).

viii - Tenn loan from HDFC Bank Limited of SIMSPL. The loans are repayable in Equated Monthly Instalments covering Principle and Interest for term
loans, These loans are for a lenn of 12 years, with a structured EMI payments for the first 1.5 years and unifonn EMI payables for the balance 10.5
years and carries a interest rate of 8.60% - 9.50% p.a floaling rate linked to bank's 1 year MCLR (31 March 2020 : 9.75% p.a floating rate linked lo
bank's | year MCLR ).

- The loans are secured by first and exclusive charge on moveable and immoveable assets, current assels of the Company and equitable morigage on
the property owned by the Company situaled al Sy no.155, D.No.1-1348 NH 44, Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri Nagar Colony extension, Near Ayyappa
Swamy Temple, Ananlapw-515004. Further, the loan is secured by way of Corporate guaranlee given by Krishna Institule of Medical Sciences
Limited (KIMS) the holding Company and personal guarantee given by the directors:- Mr. S.V Kishore Reddy and Mr. Yelakala Surendra Reddy.

- New lerm loan taken during the year from HDFC has repayment lerm of 60 months and the last instalment in the said facilities is due in January
2026.

- The New (erm loan carries an interesl rate of 8.25% p.a (31 March 2020 : Nil) floating rate linked (o bank's | year MCLR The loan is secured by
way of extension of Second ranking charge over exisling primary and collateral securilies including Mortgages created in favour of HDFC Bank.
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Long-term borrowings (at amortised cost ) (continued)

- Tenm loan - | fiom HDFC Bank of KHKPL is secuied by way ol equitable morigage on the piopetly siluated at Piol Nos27 & 28 (pari) in
Sy No931/J1B 931/J2B,931/15B,931/K1B and 931/K3 of kallur Johrapuram Road, Kumcol and first and exclusive first charge on movable and
immon able assets and current assets of the KHKPL. Furthe, the loan is also secured by corporale guaiantec given by the Company

- The loan consists of difterent facilities wherein repayments tenn ranges between 60 1o 104 months and (he last instaliment in the said facililies is due
in Apiil 2028

- The loan carries an interest rale of 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% (spread) per annum (31 March 2020: 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% (spread))

- New lenn loan taken during the year from HDFC amounling to Rs.82.5 Mn has repayment tenn of 48 months and the last instaliment in the said
facilities is due in July 2025.

- The New tenn loan carries an interest rate of 1'Y MCLR+ 0.5% (spread) per annum.The loan is secuted by way of extension of Second ranking
charge over exisling primary and collateral securilies including Mortgages created in favour of HDFC Bank

Yes Bank term loan of KHEPL is secured by fiist exclusive charge on entire movable fixed assels including leasehold improvements, present and
future, by way deed of hypothecation and first exclusive charge on all current assets of the KHEPL. Further, (he loan is secured by unconditional and
irrevocable personal guarantees of Dr. B. Abhinay, Mrs. CH. Harini and Mr. S. Sunand (Directors of the KHEPL) and Di. B. Bhaskara Rao (promoter
of the company)

- The amount is repayable in 72 monthly instalmenils starting from January 2018 (o December 2023. The loan carries an interest rale of 1Y MCLR +
1.15% (spread) (31 March 2020: 1Y MCLR + I.15% (spread) ) per annum

- The loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by the company. Further, the loan is secured by a charge on the escrow account. The loan was
pre closed during current year and was re-financed with HDFC Bank (refer note iv)

- Term loan from NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited (formerly known as IDFC Infrastructure Finance Limited) is taken by the Company and is
secured by a first pari-passu morigage and charge of immovable properties of the Secunderabad hospital and Nellore hospital building of the
Company.

- Also secured by a first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Secunderabad hospital and Nellore Hospilal movable properties including
movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of whatsoever
nature excluding the equipment which are purchased by Company out of medical equipmenl loans and a second pari-passu mortgage and charge of
immovable properties of the Ongole hospilal.

- Also includes a second pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Ongole hospital movable properties including movable plant and machinery,
machinery spares, tools and accessories, fumniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of whalsoever nature excluding the equipment
which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans; a second charge on the entire cash flows, receivables, book debts and revenues of
the Company, of whalsoever nature and wherever arising; subject lo the prior charge of the working capilal lenders

- Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B.Bhaskara Rao. The loan is repayable in 72 equal monthly instalments and carries an interest rate of
9.10% p.a. (31 March 2020: 9.10% p.a)

Aggregale amount of secured loans (including current malurities of long-term borrowings) guaranteed by few of the Company Directors and others :
Rs. 1,051.62 (31 March 2020: Rs. 2,087.33).
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.12 Other financial liabilities (at amortized cost)
{a) Non-current
Security deposits 316 283
Capital creditors 243 427
Total 5.59 7.10
(b) Current
Current malurity of long termn debls (1efer note 2.11) 30598 419.51
Capital creditors 42.00 86.25
Employee related liabilities* 104.01 104.74
Interest accrued but not duc on borrowings 880 10.67
Securily and caution deposil 647 664
Other deposits 0.32
Total 467.26 628.13
*Includes payables lo related parties. For details refer note 2.27
2.13 Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Graluity (refer note 2.26) 160.64 137.08
Total 160.64 137.08
2.14 Short-term borrowings (at amortised cost)
Secured
Working capital loans from banks (refer note i) 5267 69.21
Unsecured
Working capital loans from bank (refer note ii) 500.00 -
Others (refer nole iv) - 31.a0
Total 552.67 101.11
Notes

i Working capital loans consists of loans from :
a) - Federal bank - Loan laken by the Company is secured by primary exclusive charge on current assels of Rajahmundry hospital, both current and future and
collateral security by exclusive charge on existing hospital at Rajahmundry and pledge of minimum 51% shareholding of the Company in KIMS Hospital Private
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.
- Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.35% p.a., (31 March 2020: 9.35% p.a.).
- Outslanding amount as on 31 March 2021 is Rs. Nil (31 March 2020: 20.81)

b) - Yes Bank - Working capital loan taken by KHEPL from Yes Bank of Rs. 40.00 secured by first exclusive charge on entire movable Property, Plant and
Equipment including leasehold improvements, present and future, by way deed of hypolhecalion and first exclusive charge on ali current assets of KHEPL,

- Further, the loan is secured by uncondilional and irevocable personal guarantees of Dr, B. Abhinay, Mrs, CH. Harini (Director of KHEPL) and Mr. S. Sunand
(Director of KHEPL) and Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao.

- The loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company aggregating 1o Rs Nil (31 March 2020: Rs. 400),

- Further, the loan is secured by a charge on Lhe escrow account.

- The loan carries an inlerest rale of quarterly MCLR + 2% (spread) (31 March 2020: quarterly MCLR + 2% (spread)).

- Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2021 is Rs. Nil (31 March 2020: 9,08)

c) - Federal Bank - Working capital loan taken by ICIMSPL is secured by first charge on entire currenl assets of ICIMSPL wilh a margin of 25% on stock and
receivables and second charge on medicat equipment, other movable assels, building improvements and fixtures of ICIMSPL

- Further, it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Abhinay Bollineni, Dr. Bhaskara Rao, Dr. Sai (Director of ICIMSPL) and Dr. P Satish Kumar (Director of
ICIMSPL).

- The loan is further secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company.

- Loan is repayable on demand and carries an inleresl rate of 9.50% per annum (linked to | year MCLR) (31 March 2020: 9 50% per annwn (linked to | year
MCLR)).

- Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2021 is Rs. Nil (31 March 2020: 7.45).

c) - HDFC Bank - Working capital loan taken by SIMSPL carries interesl rale of 9.95% per annwm, linked to | year MCLR (31 March 2020: 9.95% per annum,
linked to | year MCLR}).

- The loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on moveable and immoveable assels, current assets of lhe SIMSPL and equitable mortgage on the property
owned by Veera Kishore Reddy (Director of SIMSPL) situated at Sy no.155, D.No.1-1348, NH 44, Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri Nagar Colony extension, Near
Ayyappa Swamy Temple, Anantapur-515004,

- Further, the loan is secured by way of Corporate guarantee given by the Company and personal guarantee given by Mr. Veera Kishore Reddy and Mr. Yelakala
Surendra Reddy (Directors of SIMSPL)

- Outstanding amount as on 31 March 202} is Rs. 23.73 (31 March 2020: 11.35),

d) Loan from HDFC Bank taken by KHKPL is secured by way of equitable mortgage on the property situated al Plot Nos.27 & 28 (part) in Sy.No.931/J1B
931/12B,931/15B,931/K B and 931/K3 of kallur, Johrapuram Road, Kumnool and first and exclusive first charge on movable and immovable assets and current
assets of the Company.

- Further, the loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company

- The loan carries an interest rale of 1Y MCLR+ 1 .30% (spread) per annum (31 March 2020: 1Y MCLR+ |.30% (spread) per annun).

- Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 is Rs. 28.94 (31 March 2020: Rs, 20,52).

ii  Unsecured loan from Standard Chartered Bank taken by the Company is secured by personal guarantee given by Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao.
- The loan carries an interest rate of 4.90% per annum (31 March 2020: Nil)
- Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 is Rs, 500 (31 March 2020: Rs. Nil)

iii Aggregate amount of secured and unsecured loans guaranteed by directors of the Company is Rs. 500 00 (31 March 2020: Rs. 37 34)
iv. Unsecured loan others taken from directors of KHKPL and does not carry any interest and has been fully repaid during the year.
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.15 Trade payables (at amortized cost)
Trade payables
- lotal outstanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enterprises (refer note 2 30) 17.90 25.08
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,300.80 1,209.26
Total 1,318.70 1,234.34
The above includes payable 1o related party For details 1efer note 2.27
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day tenns
2.16 Short-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2.26) 12.49 2.9
Compensated absences 9237 7118
Total 104.86 73.47
2.17 Other liabilities
(a) Non-current
Deferred income 1237 12.86
Total 12.37 12.86
(b} Current
Statutory dues payable 71.79 68.72
Contract liabilities (Refer note 2.31) 137.75 27.02
Deferred income 0.47 0.64
Other liabilities 17.12 30.70
Total 227.13 127.08
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2.18 Revenue from operations

A Revenue from contract with customers
Income from medical and healthcare services (Refer note 2.31)
Income from hospital services
Income from phannacy

Totak

B Other operating income
Income from academic courses
Income from sale of food and beverages
Other hospital income

Total
Total Revenue from operations (A+B)

2.19 Other income

Interest income on:

- fixed deposits

- income tax refunds

- security deposits
Rental income (refer note 2.25)
Liabilities/provisions no longer required writien back
Sponsorship income
Miscellaneous income

Total

For the vear ended
31 March 2021

For the vear ended
31 March 2020

8,861.40 7,339.77
4,260.72 3.697.29
13,122.12 11,037.06
6210 61.57
10570 11580
9.45 12.02
i77.25 189.39
13,299.37 11,226.45
3245 4.98
1993 577
5.61 1.88

7.09 7.86

7.52 4.54

= 0.25

29.05 35.55
101.65 60.83
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For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.20 (Increase)/ decrease in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments
Opening stock 30377 27329
Less: Closing stock 240.85 (303.77)
Total 62.92 (30.49)
2.21 Employee benefit expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,041 84 1,828.00
Contribulion to provident and other funds (refer nole no 2.26) 136.09 127.82
Staff welfare expenses 24.16 24.64
Total 2,202.09 1,980.46
2.22 Finance cost
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- lerm loans from banks 235.60 305.93
- other loans from banks 6.39 26.03
Unwinding of discount on security deposil 0.12 028
Interest expense on lease tiahilities (refer note no 2 25) 51.04 59.29
Others 31.82 7.89
Total 324.97 399.42
2.23 Other expenses
Consultancy charges 2,634.58 2,462.53
House keeping expenses 400.86 373.97
Power and fuel 243.12 24292
Catering and patient welfare expenses 159.66 156.48
Rent (refer note 2.25) 86.43 49.45
Tests and investigations 25.69 2538
Academic courses expenses 0.70 1.03
Repairs and maintenance:
- Medical equipment 24233 194.73
- Hospital building and others 201.29 148.37
Printing and stationery ) 41.20 50.72
Audit fee 6.28 8.23
Legal and professional charges 49.75 66.70
Rates and taxes 40.86 67.16
Travelling and conveyance 29.57 46.72
Advertisement expense 91.81 113.01
Communication cost 17.99 18.10
Trade receivable written off 8.26 5.68
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 38.77 46.07
Insurance 9.28 8.22
Subscriptions and membership fees 7.48 6.87
Donations 3579 50.17
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure 25.58 16.34
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 10.79 12.52
Bank charges 48.33 44.92
Directors sitting fee 0.64 1.31
Commission to Directors 1.93
Miscellaneous expenses 40.17 35.76
Total 4,499.14 4,254.36

Note A: Denations
Donations includes subscriplion to electoral bonds of Rs. Nil (31 March 2020; Rs. 50)
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2.24 Contingent liabilities and commitments

() Contingent liabilities

Particulars As ot 31 Marcli 2021 As al 31 Murch 2020
11 Luxury tax malters in dispute #2217 B227

fil Service tax malters in dispule 0.09 0.09

iil) Good and Senice 1ax mallers in dispule 6.59

] VAT matters in dispule 1.76 1.76

v} Medical claims (gross, excluding inlerest/cosls) 124.78 10068

vi)  Other claims 23.76 23.76

Vi) The Company has obtained a slay from High Court for the slate of Andhra Pradesh, dated 11 November 2014, direcling the local authorities not 10
proceed with the acquisition of part of the building in Nellore for the purpose of road widening. No provision thereof has been made in 1]
Consolidaled Ind AS financials slatements.

vi} An individual has filed a consumer case at National Consumer Dispules Redressal Commission against the Company along wilh 3 other hospitals
demanding a tolal compensation of Rs 235.01 (31 March 2020: Rs. 235.01) along with a further interest (@ 8% p.a towards medical negligence
Based on the legal opinion oblained by the company and the internal evaluation by the management, the Company believes that it has strong case in|
Lhis regard and there shall not be any outflow of resources. No provision thereof has been made in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statement.

X} On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining which
components of their employee's compensalion are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution obligations, fur]
Provident Fund conlributions under Indian law. There are interpretative issues relaling to the retrospective applicability of the judgement. However,|
from the date of order, the Group has complied wilh the aforesaid Supreme court's judgement. The Group will evaluate the same and update it3
posilion for earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the subject.

Notes:
i. Pending resolulion of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Group lo estimale the timings of the cash flow, if any, in respect of the abave
as il is detenminable only on receipt of judp /decisions p g with various forums/authorities.

d

ii. The Group has reviewed all ils pending litigations and proceedings and has ly provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable in its consolidated financial statements. The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceeding (o have a
materially adverse effect on its financial posilion.

(b} Commitments
Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

I) Capital commitment
Eslimated amount of conltracls remaining 1o be execuled on capital account and not

provideil for (net of advances) 184.45 66.36

Il) Other commitments
i) During the earlier years, the Company has acquired 80% sharcholding in Saveera Instilute of Medical Sciences Private Limited ('SIMSPL'). As per the|
shareholder's agreement, the Company agreed lo transfer 3.5% of lhe equity shares of SIMSPL to Non controlling interest of SIMSPL subject to
fulfilment of certain conditions.
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2.25 Lease

a)

b)

Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, building and medical equipment used in its operalions. Leases of building , plant and machinery
generally have lease lerms between 3 and 15 years The Group’s obhgations under ifs leases are secured by the lessor’s litle to the leased assets One of our
hospital buildings taken on lease has applied for the requisile approvals Irom municipal and other authorities. The lessoi is in Ihe piocess of oblaiming
these approvals froim respective authorities

The Group also has certain leases of buildings and equipment with lease terms of 12 months o1 less with no purchase oplion and leases of office
cquipment with low value The Group applies the ‘short-term fease” and *‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemplions for (hese leases

The Group has several lease contracls (hal include extension and termination options. These oplions are negotiated by management lo provide flexibility in
managing the leased-assel portfolio and align with the Group’s business needs Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these
extension and terminalion options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the mox ements during the year:

Particulars Leasehold Land Building Medical equip t Taotal Right of Use Asset

Asat I April 2019 - -

Addition on adoption of Ind AS 116 - 455.86 - 455.86
Reclassificalion on adoption of Ind AS 116 12255 = 14.46 13701

Additions 2695 - 26.95
Depreciation expense (2.92) (46.68) 9.41) (59.01)
As at 31 March 2020 119.63 436.13 5.05 560.81
Additions . 1.58 - 1.58
Depreciation expense (295) (47.61) (2.49) (53.05)
As at 31 March 2021 116.68 390.10 2.56 509.34

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening Balance 479.53 -
Addilion on adoption of Ind AS 116 - 456.35
Reclassification on adoption of Ind AS |16 - 27.09
Additions 1.58 26.95
Accretion of interest 51.04 59.29
Payments (73.13) (90.15)
Balance as at 459.02 479.53
Current 25.62 24.00
Non-current 433.40 455.53

The effective interest rate for lease liabililies ranges between 9% to 10.5%, with maturily between 2022-2031 (31 March 2020: 9% 1o 10.5%, with
maturity between 2022-2031)

The following are the amounls recognised in the statement of profit or loss:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 53.05 59.01
Interest expense on lease liabilities 51.04 59.29
Expense relating 10 short-lerm leases and low-value assets (included in other expenses) R6.43 49 45
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 190.52 167.75
The Group had total cash outflows for leases of Rs, 159.56 in 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Rs. 139.60)
Set oul below are the undiscounted potenlial future rental payments refating to periods included in the lease term:
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Within less than one year 72.89 76.11
Between one and five years 298.10 372.79
Afier more than five years 363.17 363.17
Total 734.16 812.07

Operating lease in the capacity of lessor

The Group has given certain property, plant and equipment on cancellable leases to various parties. The rental income eamed from such leases recognised
in other income is Rs. 7.09 (31 March 2020: Rs. 7.86)

A
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2.26
()

Employce benefits

Defined bencefit plan

The Group opetrates post-employment defined benefit plan that provide giatuity. The Gioup accrues graluity as per the provisions of the payment of Giatuity Act, 1972
as applicable as at the balance sheet date. The gialuity plan entitles an employec, who has 1endeied at least [ive years of continuous services. lo 1eccive 15 days salary
for each year of completed senvices at the lime of retirement/exit. The praluily fund is administered by trust formed [or this purpose and is managed by Life Insurance
Corpotation of India. The Group's obligation in respect of gratuily plan, which is a defined benefit plan. is provided for based on actuarial valuation canied out by an
independent actuary using the projected unit ciedit method.

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Group's Consolidated balance shect as at reporting date:

Particulars Asal As af
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Presenl value of defined benefil obligation 197.64 168.00
Fai1 value of plan assets 2451 28.63
Net funded obligation 173.13 139.37
Total employee benefit liability 173.13 139.37
Non-current 16064 137.08
Current 12.49 2:29

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation
The following table shuws a icconciliation fiom the vpening balauces (o ig closing balances (ot net defined benefit obligation, plan assels and ils components.

1} _Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars Asat As i
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Delined benefit obligation as a1 1 April 168.00 12476
Benefits paid (7.59) (1.43)
Current service cost 28.90 23.19
fterest cost 8.99 8.56
Actuariil losses/(gains) recognised in other comprehensive income due lo:
- Changes in financial assumplions 0.08 13.98
- Changes in demographic assumplions 0.50 (0.74)
experience changes (1.24) 127
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 197.64 168.00
i) Reconciliation to fair value of plan assets
Particulars K i
31 March 2021 3 Mairch 2020
Flan assets at beginning of the year 28.63 22.87
Cuontributions paid into the plan 9.37 6.54
Interest income 1.05 117
Benefits paid (7.60) (1.44)
Reliim on plan assets (6.94) (0.51)
PLin assets at end of the year 24.51 28.63
C 1) Expenses recognised in the ¢ lidated statement of profit and loss
Particulars For year ended For year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current service cost 28.90 23,19
Interest on defined benefil obligation / plan assets (net) 7.94 7.39
Net gratuity cost, included in ‘employee benefits expense' 36.84 30.58
i) Re. ts recognised in ather comprehensive income (OC1)
Particulars For year ended For year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Actuarmal (gain) / {oss on net deofined benefit obligation (0.66) 12.92
Actual relumn on pian assels less interest on plin assets 6.94 0.51
D Plan assets
Plan assets comprises of the following:
Farticulars Asat Astl
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Fund managed by Insurer 2451 28.403 I
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2.26
0]

(i)

(iii)

Employce benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plan (continued)

E Defined benefit obligation
1) Actuatial assumpltions
The following are (he principal actuarial assumpltions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Principal actuarial assumptions As at Asat

31 March 2021 31 Mireh 2020
Discount 1ate 5.15% 5.85%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%

Morntality rate
Allrition fute

0.087% 10 0.965%
R T

0.087% to 0.965%

% to 6040

F  Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

The fuliowiny payments are expected conrbutions to the defined benefit plan in fulwe years
Particulars As at Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

I'st lollowmg year 33.14 2854

Year 2 to 5 11485 8111

Year6to 9 61.95 53.92

YVewr 10 and above 99.00 90.03

The average duralion of the defined benefit plan obligalion at the end of the reporting year is 6.66 years (31 March 2020: 6.72 years).

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securilies as al the balance sheet date for the estimaled term of the

obligations

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into accounts the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant faclors.

ii) Sensitivily analysis

Reasonably possible changes al the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumnptions would have affecled the defined benefit obligation

by the atounis shown below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2021 For the year ended 31 March 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrense

Dyiscount rale (1% movement) IR [ 3.48 L5800 1428

Salury escalalion rate { | % movoment) 12,54 (HL16) 13.63 (8.23)

Although, the analysis does not lake account the full distribulion of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximalion of the
sensitivily of the assumption shown

Defined contribution plan

For year ended
31 March 2021

For year cnded

. 1 "
Particulars 31 March 2020

Arnount recognised i the vonsolidited statement of profit and loss towards
i) Provident fund 72.06 66.94

i} Employ ee state insurance 2719 3,30

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefils during employmenl and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in Seplember
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final
rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company is assessing the impact of the Code and will record any related impact in the period of the Code becomes
effective. .
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2.27

Related party disclosures

() Nature of relati poandd name of velated partics

Nature of relationship

Name of related parties

Key Management personnel (KMP)

Di. B Bhaskaia Rao - Managing Directot

Dr. B Abhinay- Chiel Executive Oflicer (w e 103 July 2019)
Mr.Uma Shankar Mantha - Company Secrelary

Mr. Vikas Maheshwani - Chiel Financial Officer

Mrs. Dand di Anitha -Whole-time Direclor

Directors of the Company

Mr G Rajeswara Rao

Mrs Jyothi Prasad (1esigned on 8 January 2021)
Mr. Saumen Chakraborty (w.e.f 8 January 202})
Mr. Pankaj Vaish (w.e.f 8 January 2021)

M. Venkata Ramudu Jasthi (w.e.f 8 January 2021)
Mr. Kaza Ratna Kishore (w.e.f 8 January 2021)
Mr Sandeep Achyul Naik

Mr._Shantanu Raslogi

Relative of KMP

Dr. Raavi Swetha- Daughter in law of Managing Direclor

Enterprises under control or joint control of
KMP and close family member of KMP

Sri Viswa Medicare Limited
KIMS Foundation and Research Cenlre
BSCPL Infrastructure Limiled

Enterprise having significant influence over the Group

General Allantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd

(b) Transactions with related partivs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

i. Professional fee to KMP
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao

ii. Professional fee to relative of KMP
Dr. Raavi Swetha

Rent expenses
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao

iv. Managerial remuneration to KMP *
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha
Dr. B Abhinay
Mr. Vikas Maheshwari
Mr. Uma Shankar Mantha

v. Directors sitting fee
Mr G Rajeswara Rao
Mrs Jyothi Prasad

vi. Repayment of loans and advances
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre

vii. Conversion of Share warrants in to equity shares
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao (refer note 2.10(b)(iii))
(Amount received during the year Rs. 950.23)

viii. Payment for purchase of Land
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao
BSCPL Infrastructure Limited

ix. Expenditure towards CSR
KIMS Foundation and Research Centre

x. Commission to Directors
Mr G Rajeswara Rao
Mr. Saumen Chakraborty
Mr. Pankaj Vaish
Mr. Kaza Ratna Kishore
Mr. Venkala Ramudu Jasthi

18.00

2,03

0.10

22.00

9.00
8.73
2,33

0.32
0.32

953.33

292.50

2129

0.20

18.00
216
0.10

24.00
3.60
7.75
7.37
1.98

0.64
0.58

10.01

15.72
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2.27 Related party disclosures

2.27 Related party disclosures (continued)

(¢) The hulunces receivables Trom and payable to velated parties
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 A March 2020
i. Trade receivables
Sri Viswa Medicare Limited 1.90 213
ii. Trade payables
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao 0.10 0.10
Di. Raavi Swetha 0.18 0.16
iii. Employee benefits payable
Dr. B Abhinay = 0.32
Mr. Vikas Maheshwari . 0.31
Uma Shankar Mantha - 012
Mrs Dandamudi Anitha = 0.16
iv. Commission payable to Directors
Mr G Rajeswara Rao 0.16
Mr. Saumen Chakraborty U.69
Mr. Pankaj Vaish 035
Mr. Kaza Ratna Kishore 0.16
Mr. Venkata Ramudu Jasthi 0.16

(d) For certain loan availed by the Group, few Directors of the Company have given personal guaranice. Refer note 2.11 and 2.14 for details.

* The managerial personnel are covered by the Group's gratuity policy and are eligible for leave hment along with other employees of the Group. The
proportionate amount of gratuity and leave encashment pertaining Lo the managerial personnel has not been included in the aforementioned disclosures as
these are deternined on an actuarial basis for the Group as a whole.

Terms and conditions:

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions Qutstanding balances at the year end are
unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.
For the above year ended, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is
undertaken on a forward-looking basis at each reporting period end through examining the historical information and financial position of the related party
that is adjusled 1o reflect current conditions of market in which the related party operates as well as information about forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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228

2.29

Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars For the year ended 31| For the year ended 31
March 2021 March 2020

Earnings

Profit altributable 1o equity shareholders of the Company 2,012.19 LGRS

Shares

Number of shaies at the beginning of the year 74,489,552 74,489,552

Add: Equity shares issued during the year 3,103,731 -

Tolal number ot equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 77,593,283 74,489,552

Weighted a\erage number of equily shaies outstanding during the year - Basic 74,872,204 74,489,552

Weighted averag ber of equily sh isi tofi f sh: h iluti

eighted average number of equily shares arising oul of issue of share warrant that have dilutive 1276,322 594,936

elfect on EPS

::x)eslghled average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - used in calculating Diluted 76,148,525 75,084,488

Eamings per share of par value Rs. 10 - Basic (Rs.) 26.87 16.00

Eamnings per share of par value Rs. 10 - Diluted (Rs.) 26.42 1587

Segment information

The Managing Director of the Group takes decision in respect of allocalion of resources and assesses Lhe performance basis the report/ infonnation
provided by functional heads and are thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker. Based on the Group's business model, medical and
healthcare services have been considered as a single business segment for the purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and assessing its
performance Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with Lhe requirements of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating segmenl’ and hence,
there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the Restated Ind AS Consolidated Summary Statement. Presently,
the Group’s operations are predominantly confined in India There are no individual customer contributing more than 10% of Group's lolal revenue All
non-current assets other than financial instrunents, deferred lax assets, post-employment benefit assets of the Group are located in India.

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with ils customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated afer filing of the
Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2021 has been made in the consolidated
financial slatements based on information received and available with the Group. Further in view of the Management, the impact of inlerest, if any, that
may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises Development Act, 2006 ("The MSMED Act’) is nol
expected 1o be material. The Group has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

Particulars Asat Asmt
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

The amounts renaining unpaid to micre and small supplies as at end of the year

- Principal 17.90 2508

- Interest . .

I'he amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Mediwn
Enlerprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made Lo the| -
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been
pal but beyond the appointed day during the year) but withoul adding the interest specified under the|
MSMED Act;

‘Thi amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose ol
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Acl.
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2.31 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information
Sel out below is the disagpregation of the Group's revenue from contracts wilh cuslotmers:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Income from hospital services 8,861.40 7,339.77
Income from phanmacy and others 42040072 3,697.29
Total revenue from contracts with customers 13,122,412 1103706
India 132212 11,037.06
QOutside India -
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time 8,861.40 7.339.77
Goods transferred al a point of time 4,260.72 3,697.29
Total revenue from contracts with customers 13,122.12 11,037.06
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:
Contract price 13,941.88 11,808.20
Less: Discounts and disallowances (819.76) (771.14)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 13,122.12 11,037.06
Contract balances

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
Trade receivables 1,098.19 1,322.68 1,232.69
Contract assels 133.52 44.39 74.46
Contract liabilities 137.75 27.02 40.66

Contract liabilities: During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has recognised revenue of Rs. 27.02 from advance received from patients
outstanding as on 31 March 2020. During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 40.66 from advance received
from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2019. It expects similarly to recognise revenue in year ended 31 March 2022 from the closing balance of advance

from customers as at 31 March 2021.

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the company has transferred Rs. 44.39 of conlract assets as at 31 March 2020 to trade
receivables on completion of performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has transferred Rs. 74.46 of contract

assets as at 31 March 2019 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation
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2,32 Capital management
The Group’s policy is 1o maintain a stable capital base so as lo maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future developmenl of the
business. Management monilors capilal on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the "adjusted net debl' to 'total equity' 1atio.
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents Total equity comprises of issued share capital and all

other equily reserves

The Company's adjusted net debt 10 equity ratio as of 31 Maich 2021 and 31 March 2020 was as follows:

Particulars As at As
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total borrowings 2,704 68 3,207.79
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (521.29) (405.14)
Adjusted net debt 2,183.39 2,802.65
Total equity 8,761.95 6,114.30
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio - Gearing ratio 24.92% 45.84%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capilal management, amongst other things, aims to ensure Lhat it meets financial covenants
attached 1o the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requiremenls. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 202 and 31 March 2020.
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2,33 Financial instruments : r value and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2021 |
- - Fair value level
Carrying value Fair value
Financial asscts at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 1,098.19 1,098.19
Cash and cash equivalents 521.29 52129
Bank balances othei than above 232313 232313
Loans 186.35 186.35
Olher financial assels 26347 26347
Total 4,392.43 4,392.43
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below) FeES
Long-term barrowings (excluding current maturilies) 1.846.03 1,846 03
Lease liabilities 459.02 45902
Short-lenn borrowings 552,67 55267
Trade payables 1,318.70 1,318.70
Other financial liabilities 472.85 472.85
Total 4,649.27 4,649.27
As at 31 March 2020 .
= = Fair value level
Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 1,322.68 1,322.68
Cash and cash equivalents 405.14 405.14
Bank balances other than above 52.13 52.13
Loans 64.71 64.71
Other financial assels 55.39 55.39
Total 1,900.05 1,900.05
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below) EeElS
Long-lenn borrowings (excluding current maturities) 2,687.17 2,687.17
Lease liabililies 479.53 479.53
Short-term borrowings 10111 101.11
Trade payables 1,234.34 1,234.34
Other financial liabilities 635.23 63523
Total 5,137.38 5,137.38

Nute for finuncial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost:
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other financials assets, other financial liabilities (excluding current malurities), short tenm borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered 10 be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for loans were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due lo
the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk

The fair values of non-current borrowings (including current malurities) are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair
value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs including own credit risk.

B. Financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose il to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk

(i) Risk management framework
The Group's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the eslablishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Board of Direclors has
established the risk management cominittee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the
Board of Direclors on its activities.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, 1o set appropriale risk limits and controls to monitor risks and
adherence o limits Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Group’s activities The Group, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all the employees understand their roles and
obligations.
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2.33  Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

(ii) Credit risk

Credil risk is the nsk thal the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instiument a1 customer contiacl. leading Lo financial loss. The credit risk arises
principally fiom its operafing activilies (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing aclivilies, including deposils with banks and {inancial institutions and other
financial instruments. The camrying amounts of linancial assels represent the maximum credil risk exposure

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limils to whom credit has been granled afier oblaining necessary appiovals for credit. The collection from the trade receivables are
monitored on a continuous basis by (he receivables team.

The Group establishes an allowance for credit loss that repiesents ils estimate ol expecled losses in regpecl ol trade receivables based on the pasl and the recent collection
trend. The maximun exposure to credit risk as al reporting dale is primarily from trade receivables and contract assets amounting (o Rs. 1,643.58 as on 31 March 2021 (31
March 2020 : Rs. 1,740.17). The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

. As at As il
it Tor credit losses A1 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Opemng balince 37310 326,48
Credit loss added 38.77 46,62
Closing Balance 41187 373.110
Trade receivable wrile oft not rouled through the above movement 8.26 5.68

The Group uses a provision malrix to determine the expecied credil loss on lhe portfolio of its trade receivables and contract assets. The provision malrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward looking eslimates. The expected credit loss
allowance is based on (he ageing of the days the receivables are due in the provision matrix Set out below is the infoermation about the credit risk exposure of the Group's
trade receivables and contract asset using provision matrix:

0-180 days due past More than 180 days Gross trade receivables
Not past due

due date past due date and contract assets
For the year ended 31 March 2021 693.08 665.88 284.62 1,643.58
For the year ended 31 March 2020 222.66 944.77 572.74 1,740.17

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 Therefore the customer concentration
risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limiled as the Group generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and
domestic credit rating agencies.
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2.33 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity 1isk is the tisk that the Group will encounter diflicully in meeling the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or another

financial assel The Group’s approach lo managing liquidily is (o ensure, as [ar as possible. that 1t will have suflicient Liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under
both normal and siressed conditions, withoul incurring unacceptable losses or nisking damage (o the Group’s repulation

The table below provides details repanding the undiscounted contiactual muturitics of significant financial liahilities as of 31 March 2021

Particulars Carrving valie Less than | vear I -5 vears Mure than 5 vears Tatal
Long-term borrowinis (excluding current maturities) | 846,03 . 1,499 25 35040 1.849.65
Lease liabilities 459.02 7289 298.10 363.17 73416
Short-term borrowings 55267 552.67 - 552.67
Trade payables 1,318.70 1,318.70 - 1,318.70
Other financial liabilitics 47285 46720 243 316 47285
Tutal 4,649.27 2411.52 1,799.78 T16.74

The table below provides details regarding the undiscouriied contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities s of 31 March 2020

Particulars Carrving value Less than 1 year 1 -5 years Mare than 5 vears Total

Long-lerm borrowings {excludmg current maturities) 2,687.17 . 2,087.75 605.43 2,693, 14
Lease liabilities 479.53 76.11 372.79 363.17 812.07
Short-tenn borrowings 101.11 101.11 . - 101.11
Trade payables 1,234.34 1,234,34 - = 1,234.34
Other financial liabilities 635.23 638,13 4,27 283 635.23
Total 5,137.38 2,039.69 1.464.81 971.43 547593

The Group has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Group to repay the loan earlier than indicaled in the above
C. Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk exposure

Inlerest rale risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates The Group’s exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s lmg-term and short-term barruwinis with variable interest rates

Parti As at As at

articulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Variable rate [vny term horrowings (ineluding cument maturities) and short tenn homowings 2.177.91 307231
Total horrowings 2,177.91 307231
(i) Sensitivity

Impact on profit or loss
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Sensitiviry
1% increase in MCLR {21.78) (30.72)
"o decrease in MCLR 21.78 30.72

The interes! rate sensitivily is based on the cluzing bulince of secured term loans and working capital loans from banks.

D. Currency risk
The Group is not exposed to currency risk.
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2.34 Business combinations and acquisition of non-controlling interests

(i) Acquisition of additional interest in shares of KIMS Hospitals Enterprise Private Limited

During the year ended 31 Maich 2021, the Company had increased its stake in KIMS Hospitals Enterpiise Private Limiled (rom 7526 % o 86.32% through
secondary purchase o'2,713,307 equity shares from existing shareholders for a total amount of Rs. 352.73. The shates were purchased at Rs. 130 per share. This
has resulted in reduction ol non controlling interest and other equity amounting to Rs. 51.38 and Rs. 301.25 respectively-

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had increased its stake in KIMS Hospilals Enterpiise Private Limiled from 5027 % 1o 75.26% thiough
secondary purchase of 6.134.434 equity shares from existing shareholders in thiee (ranches for a total amount of Rs. 710.34. [n the first two tranche 4.357,021
shares were purchased al Rs.| 10 pet share and in the third tanche 1,777,413 shaies were puichased at Rs.130 per share. This has iesulied in reduetion of non
controlling interest and other equity amounting 10 Rs, 87.61 and Rs. 621.15 respectively

(ii) Acquisition of shares of KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Private Limited

On 01 April 2019, the Group acquired 55% of the voting shares of KIMS Hospitals Kumool Private Limited
Since the date of acquisilion, KHKPL has generated revenue of Rs. 409.83 and total comprehensive loss of Rs. 93.07, during the year ended 31 March 2020
Control over KHKPL is expected lo provide the Group with an increased share Lo the healthcare market through access 1o KHKPL's customer base.

A. Consideration transferred

The following lable summarises the acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred :

Particulars Amount
Cash Bl.66

B. Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 345.59
Intangible assets 12.14
Current and non current assets 25.10
Deferred tax liability (3.32)
Currenl and non current liabilities {66.00)
Total assets 3.51
Debt 339.30
Total liabilities 339,30
Total net identifiable assets acquired (25.79)

The fair value of above acquired assets and liabilities were detennined by a registered valuer. This fair value was estimated by applying an income approach. The
following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair value:

Weighted-Average Required Relurn on Assets (WARA) 15.60%
Implied Intemal Rate of Return (IRR) 20.43%
Weighted-Average Cost of Capilal (WACC) 15.60%

C. Goodwill arising on acquisition

Consideration transferred 81.66
Non-controlling interest (11.60)
Fair value of net identifiable nssets 25.79
Goodwill 95.86

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of KHKPL because the cost of combination included a control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue growth due to existing customer contract, future market
development and assembled workforce of KHKPL. Due Lo the contractual tenms imposed on acquisition, the customer list is not separable. Therefore, it does not
meet the criteria for recognilion as an inlangible assel under Ind AS 38

Accounting Policy choice for non-controlling interests

The group recognises non-controlling interests in an acquired entity either at fair value or at the non controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired
entity's nel identifiable assets. This decision is made on an acquisition-by- acquisition basis. For the non-conlrotling interest of KIMS Hospilals Kurnool Private
Limited, the group elected to recognise the non-controlling interests at its proportionale share of the acquired net idenlifiable assets.
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2.35 Noun-controlling interest

The following (able summarises the financial information relating 1o each of the Group's subsidiarics. befote any intia-group eliminations

As at 31 March 2021

NCI Percentage

Non-current assets

Cunent assels

Non-cuirent liabilities

Current liabilities

Net Asscts

Net Assets attributable to NCI (before ad justments)
Business combination and other adjustment on consolidation
Net Assets attributabic to NCI

Revenue

Profit

Other comprehensive income (‘OCI%)
Total comprehensive income
Profit allocated to NCI

OCTI allocated to NCI

Business combination and other adjustment on consolidation
Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI

Cash flows

Cash flow from operaling aclivities

Cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activilies

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash flows attributable to NCI

As at 31 March 2020

NCI1 Percentage

Non-current assels

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Net Assets

Net Assets attributable to NCI (before adjustments)
Business combinalion and other adjustment on consolidation
Net Assets attributable to NCI

Revenue

Profit

Other comprehensive income ('OCI')

Total comprehensive income

Profil allocated to NCI

OCI allocated o NC1

Business combinalion and other adjustment on consolidation
Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI

Cash flows

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from invesling activities

Cash flow from financing aclivities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash flows attributable to NCI

Arunodaya [conkrishi Institute of KIMS Hospital Saveera Institute of KIMS Hospitals
Hospitals Private Medical Sciences Enterprises Private Medical Sciences Kurnool Private
Limited Private Limited Limited Private Limited Limited
42.17% 49.00% 13.68% 20.00% 45.00%
189.48 243 40 1,058.80 87288 466.03
13351 13495 38744 156.34 73.19
(11.16) (195 46) (511.22) (586.35) (512.42)
(56.48) (135.00) (300.84) (226.94) (193.67)
25535 47.90 634.18 215.93 (166.87)
107.68 23.47 86.77 43.19 (75.09)
([h66) 9.90 (1.65) (65.72) 13.28)
107.02 33.37 H5.12 (22.53) (78.37)
364.76 834.78 1.638.88 694.72 524.45
25.37 96.67 158.34 {48.59) (51.77)
123 (0.02) (0.89) (0.14) (0.04)
26.59 96.65 157.46 (48.73) (51.80)
10.70 4737 21.67 (9.72) (23 30)
0.52 (0.01) (0.12) (0.03) (0.02)
[URA)] 2210) 0.0h (0.79)
10.11 45.15 21.54 (9.75) {24.11)
43.07 86.08 455.71 5437 14.45
(80.61) (20.90) (172.35) (46.97) (46.85)
(2.97) (33.62) [168.69) 0.77 3346
(40.31) 3156 114.67 8.17 .06
(17.00) 15.46 15.69 1.63 0.48
Arunodaya Iconkrishi Institute of KIMS Hospital Saveera Institute of KIMS Hospitals
Hospitals Private Medical Sciences Enterprises Private Medical Sciences Kurnool Private
Limited Private Limited Limited Private Limited Limited
42.17% 49.00%, 24,74%, 20.00"%, 45.00%
193.42 4780 |.151.43 S86.98 488.60
114.01 87.43 156.79 124.75 38.43
(13.52) (202.13) (659.32) (558.85) (426.24)
(65.16) (181.86) (172.17) (188.21) (215.86)
228.76 (48.76) 476.73 264.66 (115.06)
96.47 (23.89) 117.93 5293 (51.78)
- 12.56 (2.96) (65.72) (2.49)
96.47 (11.33) 114.97 (12.79) (54.27)
39347 559.43 1,422.43 585.10 409.83
3942 (81.58) 114.56 (31.04) (93.26)
(1.29) 0.10 (0.35) 0.38 0.19
38.13 (81.48) 114.21 (30.66) (93.07)
16.62 (39.97) 28.34 6.21) 41.97)
(0.54) 0.05 (0.09) 0.08 0.08
(0.10) 297 - - (0.80)
15.98 (36.95) 28.25 (6.13) {42.69)
65.39 1.02 286.36 58.52 20.20
(10.49) (18.84) (51.57) (38.29) (155.50)
(13.86) 16.36 (229.05) (23.94) 131.24
41.04 (1.46) 574 3.1) (4.06)
17.31 (0.71) 1.42 (0.74) (1.83)
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2.36 Additional infornation pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of Consolidaled Financial Statements:

31 March 2021

Name of the entity

Net Assets (i.e. total assets

minus total liabilities)

Share in profit or (loss)

Share in Other
Comprehensive Income

Share in total
comprehensive income

As Yo of As % of
As % of As % of consolidated consolidated
consolidated  Amount  consolidated  Amount other Amount total Amount
net assets profit and loss comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Parent
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 103.55% 9,073.23 9181% 1,886.49 103.23% (4.79) 91.78% 1,881.70
Subsidiary
Arunodaya Hospiltals Privale Limited 291% 25535 0.71% 14.66 -15.30% 0.71 0.75% 15.37
KIMS Hospilals Private Limited 1.37% 119.65 -0.15% (2.98) 0.00% -0.15% (2.98)
KIMS Swastha Private Limited -0.03% (2.46) -0.03% (0.54) 0,00% -0.03% (0.54)
KIMS Cuddles Privale Limited 0.00% = -0.01% (0.26) 0.00% -0.01% (0.26)
KIMS Hospital {Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 0.00% 0.05 0.00% (0.03) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.03)
KIMS Hospilal Enterprises Private Limiled 7.24% 634.18 6.65% 136.67 16.38% (0.76) 6.63% 13591
Iconkrishi Institute Of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.55% 47.90 2.40% 49.30 0.22% (0.01) 2.40% 49.29
Saveera Institule O Medical Sciences Privale Limiled 246% 21593 -1.89% (38.87) 2.37% 0.1 -1.90% (38.98)
KIMS Hospitals Kumool Private Limited -1.90%  (166.87) -1.39% (28.47) 0.43% 0.02) -1.39% (28.49)
Non-controlling interesls in all subsidiaries 1.42% 124,61 2.07% 42.60 -7.33% 034 2.09% 4294
Eliminations 1787 (1,530.62) -0.17% (3.78) 0.00% - 00| 8% (3.78)
Total 100.00%  8,761.95 LO001Ye 2,054,719 100,00, (4.64) H0.00%  2,050,15

31 March 2020

Name of the entity

Net Assets (i.e. total assets

minus total liabilities)

Share in profit or (loss)

Share in Other
Comprehensive Income

Share in total
comprehensive income

As % of As % of
As % of As % of consolidated consolidated
consolidated Amount consolidated  Amount other Amount total Amount
net assets profit and loss comprehensive comprehensive
income income

Parent
Krishna Institule of Medical Sciences Limited 102.08%  6,241.30 105.24%  1,211.06 90.33% (9.04) 105.37%  1,202.02
Subsidiary
Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited 3.74% 22876 1.98% 22.80 7.47% (0.75) 1.93% 2205
KIMS Hospitals Private Limited 201% 122,64 -1.02% (11.72) 0.00% - -1.03% (1L.72)
KIMS Swastha Private Limited -0.03% (1.92) -0.05% (0.52) 0.00% - -0.05% (0.52)
KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 0.00% 0.26 -0.01% (0.07) 0.00% - -0.01% (0.07)
KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Privale Limited 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 0.00% 0.08 0.00% (0.01) 0.00% - 0.00% 0.0
KIMS Hospital Enlerprises Private Limited 7.80% 476.73 7.49% 86.22 2.60% (0.26) 7.54% 85.96
[conkrishi Institute Of Medical Sciences Private Limited -0.80% (48.76) -3.62% (41.60) -0.50% 0.05 -3.64% (41.55)
Saveera Institule Of Medical Sciences Private Limited 4.33% 264.66 -2.16% (24.83) -3.00% 0.30 -2.15% {24.53)
KIMS Hospitals Kurnool Privale Limited -1.88%  (115.06) -4.46% {51.29) -1.10% 0.1l -4.49% (51.18)
Non-controlling inlerests in all subsidiaries 2.18% 133.05 -3.57% [CINED! 4.20% (0.42) -3.64% (41.53)
Eliminations -19.42% (1.187.44) [1.16% 1,79 0.00% - 0.16% 179
Total 100.00%  6.114.30 100.00%,  1,150.72 100,004 (10.01) 100.00% 1,140,701
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237 Incomie fax

a. Amount revopniscd in The statemnt ol profit and bess

For (he vear ended  For the year ended|
A1 March 2021 A1 March 7(I1Ilj

Curram Lax 77839 432.9%
Defurrad wax attributable o temporary diflferances (33.413) (154.79)
Ad| nant of (ax refating 1o crlier years (10.0) (23.65)
Tax expenses for the ycar 735.36 25454
I Asount recopnised in other comprebins e ngume
For the vear ended 31 March 2021 For he year ended 31 March 2020
Belore tax Tax {expense)/ Net of tax Belore 1ax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax
henefit henefit
Re-measuremont on defined bonefit plans (6.28) 1.64 (4.64) (13.43) 342 Ll
o R thathon of cfective tux rate
For the yeur endéd For the vear ended
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Frofit hefore tax 1708 1,405.26
Fiatesl fax rates 25 168% 25,1684
Tin expanse al anacted rates 0222 416.61
Adnzstnnat of tax relating 1o wrrlier years (10mn {2365H
Tas effect of amounts which are not (taxable) in cal taxable income
Non-daductible expenses 3199 8.57
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlemont (16.26) .
Imipact of change in rate of ax = (124.27j)
Rl ) o mition o1 tix losses 2639 {21.1%)
CHhas 102 (LR
Tutal 735.36 I54.54
d. Recognilion of deferred tax asscts and liabilities
(1) Deforved bay asnets and Duabilities arce attcibutalili to the fllan gt
: Asar As at
Farticulars N 30 Mareh 2001 31 March 2020
Diefermind tax asset
Expevtul credit loss for trade receivables 93.99 KR53
Provisiin for ecmiployee bonefits 7998 61.47
Fropusty, Plant and Equipment 6.24 417
W ARerste ax cradit comilement 16.26 2106
Uthirs 2055 15.74
Total deferred tax asset 217.01 19097
Deferved tax liability
Pripesty, Plant and Equipment 54370 53147
Ohers 228 pAIY)
Total deferred tax liability 545.97 53354
Defereed tax asset (328.96) (A7)
Net deforred (ax liabilities (35831) 135675
Mot deferyed 1as s 2935 14.16
(ii) Movemcnt in temporary differcnces
. Expected credit A::rr:::::'::;x Provision for Others - Tax Iu.ssu Property, plant Propcrty', plant .
Particulars loss for trade N carried and cquipment | and equipment | Others - liability Total
N credit employee henefits assels P
receivables N forward {asset) (liability)
entitlement
rﬂnlllltl‘ us at 1 April 2619 [FERE] 1952 67.67 10.20 5248 5.46 (7R792) 1247 490,12y
Fwcogumal in profit or loss during the year (26.41) - (962) 15.76 (5248) (1.29) 236.45 039 16231
|Beveyrmisal in OCT during the yer - - 342 - - - 342
Clicrs - {8.02) - - - - - : 18002
alanec a5 at 31 March 2020 8853 21.06 61.47 15.74 - 447 (531.47) 2.07) (H25T)
bl in profit or loss during the year 546 16 26 16 87 4381 216 122y 020y 33m
Ruocagmial in OCI during the yer : 1.64 . a - = 164
Cnlprs = [RARITA] - - - = {21063
Balance as af 31 March 2021 93144 1626 7098 2455 6.4 (=43.70) (22H) (32H.961
Tax loss and unabsorbed depreciation carry-forwand for which o deferred tay assels were recorded with expiry date:
Asal Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Expiry within | -5 ycars . y
Expiry within 6-8 ycars 4525 106 44
Indviimne 197596 1E134
4320 TH6TH

Amoint of deferred tay sssel that has ot heen recorded as at vear onil:

T e
Defirred tan wsset vl rocornded e ol yoar vl
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2.38 The Gioup did not have any long lerm contiacts including detivative contiacts for whichi there were any material foresceable losses The Group does not have any
unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

2.39 Goodwill
As at 31 March 2021 As at A1 Mareh 2020
Balance at (he beginning of t]ie year 847.75 751 80
Additions on account of business combination during the yeal - 95.86
Impainment of goodwill *
Balance at the end of the year 847.75 847.75

For impaimment testing, goodwill acquired thiough business combinations and goodwill on consolidation has been allocated (o the medical and healthicare services
CGU
The group has peifonned its annual impainment testing for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

Medical and Health care Services CGU

The recoverable amount of the CGU, has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections fiom financial budgets approved by
senior manageinent covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for impainnent testing during the years is stated in the
below lable and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a long term prowth rate as stated in the below table that is the same as the long-term
average growth rate for the Medical and Heallh care industry.

As at 3 Muarch 2021 As at 31 March 2020
[iscount rate 16.50% 16.50%
Long teom prowth rale 5.50% 5.50%

The discount rale is based on the Weighted Average Caost of Capital (WACC) which represents the weighted average relum attributable to all the assets of the
CGU.

There is no impairment noted in the Medical and Healthcare Services CGU based on the assessment performed by Ihe managemenl. Management has performed
sensilivity analysis around the base assumption and have concluded that no reasonable possible change in key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of
the Medical and Healthcare CGU lower than the carrying amount of CGU. Further, there are no impairment indicators as at and for the year ended 31 March
2021

2.39 Global Health Pandemic
The outbreak of COVID-19 in many countries has brought aboul disruptions to businesses around the world and uncertainty to the global economy. The
Company is closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of il's business, including how it will impact its employees, vendors and business
partners. The Company based on the information available lo date, both internal and extemal, considered the uncertainty relating to the COVID-19 pandemic in
assessing ils impacl. Based on the current estimates, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of assets, and does not foresee any material
adverse impact on its operalions. As the outbreak continues to evolve, the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes (o future economic
condition,

2.40 Subsequent events
No significant subsequent events have been observed till 25 May 2021 which may require any additional disclosure or an adjustment to the financial slatements,

As per our report on even date altached

Jfor S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Sfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Krishna Institute of Medica! Sciences Limited
ICAT Finn Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004 CIN: U55101 TGL973PLCO403ER
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per Navneel Ral Kabra

NNV

Parimer Managing Direcror
Membicrship no. [02328 CHARTERED W, DIN:00008985
ACCOUNTANTS J,l,’:i s W”‘ A
/ R Gt N . - o,
< Vikas Maheshwari Uma Shanker Mantha

Chief Financial Officer ~ Company Secretary
Membership no:A21035

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: 25 May 2021 Date: 25 May 2021
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The Secretary, The Secretary,
Bo'mbay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE) National Stock Exchange, Exchange
Phiroze Jheejheebhoy Towers, Plaza, 5th Floor Plot No.C/1, 'G' Block
Dalal Street, Bandra - Kurla Complex
Mumbai - 400 001. Mumbai - 400 051.
Scrip Code - 543308 Symbol - KIMS
ISIN: INE967H01017 ISIN: INE967H01017
Dear Sir

Subject: Declaration pursuant to Regulation 33(3)(d) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 33(3)(d) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we hereby declare that S.R. Batliboi & Associates
LLP (ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W /E300004), Chartered Accountants, Statutory
Auditors of the Company have issued an Audit Report with unmodified opinion on the Audited
Financial Results (both standalone and consolidated) of the Company for the year ended 31st
March 2021.

Kindly take on record the same.
Thanking you,
Yours truly

For Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

) b ants

Umashankar Mantha
General Manager —Legal,
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Minister Road, Secunderabad - SO0 003. Telangana. India
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